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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”), | am
pleased to present to shareholders the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2020.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group still focused on our
principal businesses of the environmental and cleaning services and
the money lending business and recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$36.7 million attributable to the owners of the Group as compared to
a net profit of approximately HK$18.5 million attributable to the owners of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLEANING BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Our environmental and cleaning business in Hong Kong, being our major
business segment, was facing a challenging and difficult market due
o (i) the fierce competition in the pricing; (ii) the intense labor supply
upon the implementation of the Statutory Minimum Wage (the “SMW”)
in Hong Kong which was adjusted upward by 9% in May 2019; and (jii)
decline in the price and service volume from some of our customers in
the commercial, the transportation and the hotel sectors of which the
businesses have been severely affected by the persistent social unrests in
Hong Kong since the second half of 2019 and the worldwide spreading
of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic in the first half of
2020. With a view of such difficult time for all businesses in Hong Kong,
The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) Government
(the “Government”) has launched the Employment Support Scheme (the
“ESS”) to provide an one-off limited financial subsidy to employers to pay
part of the salaries of their employees for the months from June 2020 to
November 2020. Under the ESS, the Group has obtained a subsidy of
approximately HK$4.8 million for our employees under the environmental
and cleaning business in Hong Kong for June 2020 which has been
recorded as other income during the year. As a result, the net profit
(excluding the one-off subsidy from the ESS) from the environmental and
cleaning services in Hong Kong decreased by approximately HK$5.4
million for the year.
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Nevertheless, we have been taking various strategies including
taking more proactive approach to gain additional market share in
the commercial and the residential sectors and the revenue from
the environmental and cleaning services in Hong Kong increased by
approximately HK$39.0 million for the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLEANING BUSINESS IN THE
PRC

The environmental and cleaning business in Shanghai, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “Shanghai Operations”) remains
at the growth stage. However, due to the downturn in the economic
environments in the PRC among the spreading of COVID-19 since the
first half of 2020, the Shanghai Operations lost several small cleaning
service contracts and recorded a decline in the revenue by approximately
HK$2.7 million for the year. Nevertheless, the Shanghai Operations
implemented more efficient working flows and stringent cost control
procedures, the net profit from the Shanghai Operations increased by
approximately HK$0.3 million for the year. We will continue to take a
more proactive market approach to penetrate into the PRC market.
Together with the extensive business network and operating experience
possessed by the existing management of the Shanghai Operations, the
financial support made by the Group and the management and operating
skills provided by our environmental and cleaning services in Hong
Kong, the Shanghai Operations is believed to be another major source of
income and profit of the Group in the coming financial years.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The economy in Hong Kong and the PRC have been challenging for all
businesses with the prolonged Sino-US trade tensions, a further struck
by the persistent social unrests in Hong Kong since the second half of
2019 and the worldwide spreading of COVID-19 since the first half of
2020. Amid such negative factors, some of our borrowers under the
money lending business have been severely affected and are in sudden
financial difficulties, and therefore have defaulted on repayment of their
loans and interests on schedules. Therefore, the Group has recognized
impairment loss of approximately HK$37.0 million (the “Impairment
Loss”) on part of these past due loans and interest receivables from such
borrowers during the year specifically. Nevertheless, the Group has been
taking actions, including but not limited to legal proceedings against
these borrowers, to recover the loan principals, interests and all other
related recovery costs incurred.
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With such negative factors, the operating and economic environment
in Hong Kong and the PRC is expected to remain challenging and
unstable for all businesses throughout 2020. In view of such uncertain
and negative economic outlook, the Group will pursue opportunities
and growth in a cautious manner with a high standard of risk and credit
management which ensures that the existing loans portfolio and new
loans granted by the Group are carefully assessed and controlled in
accordance with the Group’s stringent credit policies.

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG

During the year, the Group acquired commercial properties located in
Hong Kong as the Group’s headquarter. However, due to the adverse
economic conditions in Hong Kong from the outbreak of COVID-19, the
prolonged Sino-US trade tensions and the persistent social unrests in
Hong Kong, the market value of most commercial properties in Hong
Kong have been declining since the second half of 2019. As a result,
a revaluation loss of approximately HK$13.2 million on the Group’s
commercial properties is recorded based on the independent valuation as
at 30 June 2020.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
our valued customers, business partners, and shareholders for their
persistent support, and express my appreciation to the management
team and employees for their valuable contribution to the development of
the Group. Finally, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to the
officers of Stock Exchange for their guidance.

Yu Shaoheng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

28 September 2020
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of environmental
services in Hong Kong and the PRC, which include the provision of
cleaning and related services for (i) public area and office cleaning
services which involve cleaning of public areas, carpets, floors, toilets,
changing rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of garbage bins at
commercial buildings and their tenants, residential complexes, shopping
arcades, hotels and public transport facilities such as airport, ferries,
ferry terminal, cargo and logistics centre and depots; (ii) overnight
kitchen cleaning services mainly at private club and hotels; (i) external
wall and window cleaning services; (iv) stonefloor maintenance and
restoration services; (v) pest control and fumigation services; (vi) waste
management and disposal solutions which mainly involve collection,
transportation and disposal of household waste, construction waste and
trade waste and sales of recyclable waste such as paper, metal and
plastic waste collected during our operations; (vi) housekeeping services
where we provide housekeeping services to carry out professional daily
housekeeping and cleaning services at local boutique hotels, hostels
and serviced apartments; (vii) secure and confidential waste destruction
for commercial clients; (ix) sanitation solution for yacht; (x) cleaning and
waste management solution for renovated apartment; and (xi) airline
catering support services.

Money Lending Business

The Group has conducted its money lending business in Hong Kong
under the money lenders licences since 2017. During the year, the Group
has also developed its money lending business in the PRC.
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REBHE

RERBRRE
AEENEBEH/NEB RPERERER
% BREH‘TIISEFSRLBERE ()2
FHTTRMREFRRE - SRR ARM
77 M AR RUAT  ERE - TTREER
B UREBEZAE(REEF)  E=%
E3t - BYRES  BE R HER RE (N
% KW EWISE - EMEYRPORE
)T R = RIRAE ¢ (i) BB EREBRR
% ARG EERETRAGHEBERE ¢ (i
SN R BB RS ¢ (v) A M HARIRE R BT
R% (B RIRBEERIERS  VIEMERK
REMRNE HEBFRNE BEHLEE
EFPEY  ZEEVIBEEDREEELRR
A BIEPWEMSOREREREY - f
oo BEA - SBREBE - (ViDEHRY - BB
A EmBE  BELARERAABRHEEBER
% BRETEENEBIBERRE ¢ (vi)R
BEREFPRESRLRE X HBRS © (03
BRERHEERALTER AR AERNE
BREMERBRTER  RKMZEER R
& o

HERH

BT tFi AEERBFBRBHEAR
SREARMERS - NFR - ARENF E#%
RIESRT -



o,’

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Compared to the revenue of approximately HK$261.6 million for the year
ended 30 June 2019, the Group’s revenue from the environmental and
cleaning services in Hong Kong increased by approximately HK$39.0
million to approximately HK$300.6 million for the year ended 30 June
2020.

Revenue by Service Sector

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by different
sectors which reflect the target clients of our environmental and cleaning
services in Hong Kong:

Year ended
30 June 2020
BE—F-FF
NA=THLEE

HK$’000
FET
Commercial (EES 125,722
Residential x= 77,286
Hospitality BE 25,442
Transportation By 56,110
Others Hith 16,018

300,578

Most commercial contracts are for the provision of cleaning and related
services at commercial buildings where customers traditionally demand a
higher service quality and are also willing to pay a premium price. Aimost
all of the commercial contracts enable the Group to provide additional
services for the tenants in the tenanted area of the buildings with
contracts on a regular, ad-hoc or one-off basis which further enhance
our revenue stream. The Group succeeded in securing several new
significant service contracts in the commercial sector during the year
which contributed additional significant amount of revenue for the year
and in the coming fiscal year.

The Group has allocated more resources to gain services contracts from
the residential during the year. The Group succeeded in securing several
new significant service contracts for premium private housing estates
which contributed additional significant amount of revenue for the year.
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Year ended
30 June 2019
HE_ZT—NF
NAZTHLEFE
% HK$'000 %

FAET

105,340 40.3
57,200 21.8
30,155 1.5
50,685 19.4
18,242 7.0

261,622 100.0
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The businesses of hospitality in Hong Kong have been severely affected
by the persistent social unrests in Hong Kong since the second half of
2019 and the worldwide spreading of COVID-19 since the first half of
2020. Our customers under the hospitality sector have been requesting
the Group to suspend our services and reduce the pricing and service
volume of our services since the first half of 2020. As a result, the revenue
from the hospitality sector declined for the year and is expected to further
decline in the coming fiscal year.

During the year, the Group was providing hygiene and related services
to several respectable transportation operators including a toilet cleaning
contract at the airport of Hong Kong, a bus and bus depot cleaning and
fuel refiling contract, as well as the provision of cabin dressing in which
the Group provides the cleaning and restocking bathroom and seat
amenities for one of the largest airline operators in Hong Kong. These
contracts prove our Group’s portfolio in the transportation sector and our
reputation and the ability to provide 24/7 around the clock environmental
services. The increase in the revenue from the transportation sector
is attributable to obtaining additional service contract for bus depot
cleaning and fuel refilling during the year. However, the price and service
volume from airline related customers of which the businesses have
been severely affected by the worldwide spreading of COVID-19 have
been significantly declining or suspended since the first half of 2020. It
is expected that the revenue from the transportation sector would be
significantly affected in the coming fiscal year.

Most of the revenue from other sector is recurring and service price is
reviewable on an annual basis.

Results

During the year, the Group was granted by the Government an one-off
subsidy amounting to approximately HK$4.8 million under the ESS for
part of the monthly salaries of our employees under the environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong for June 2020 which was included in
the “Other income” for the year ended 30 June 2020.

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the environmental and cleaning
business in Hong Kong achieved a lower net profit of HK$5.9 million
(excluding the one-off subsidy from the ESS) as compared to the
net profit of HK$11.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2019. The
decrease is mainly due to (i) fierce competition in pricing; (i) continuing
increasing manpower service costs due to the intense labor supply in the
environmental and cleaning service and the implementation of the SMW
in Hong Kong which was adjusted upward by 9% in May 2019; and (iii)
decline in the price and service volume from some of our customers in
the commercial, the hospitality and the transportation sectors of which
the businesses have been severely affected by the persistent social
unrests in Hong Kong since the second half of 2019 and the worldwide
spreading of COVID-19 since the first half of 2020.
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Environmental and Cleaning Services in Shanghai, the PRC

The Shanghai Operations remains at the growth stage. However, due
to the downturn in the economic environments in the PRC among
the spreading of COVID-19 since the first half of 2020, the Shanghai
Operations lost several small cleaning service contracts and recorded a
decline in the revenue by approximately HK$2.7 million to approximately
HK$28.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: approximately
HK$30.8 million). Nevertheless, the Shanghai Operations implemented
more efficient working flows and stringent cost control procedures, the
net profit from the Shanghai Operations increased by approximately
HK$0.2 million to approximately HK$1.8 million for the year ended 30
June 2020 (2019: approximately HK$1.6 million).

Money Lending Business

During the year, the economy in Hong Kong and the PRC have been
challenging for all businesses with the prolonged Sino-US trade tensions,
a further struck by the persistent social unrests in Hong Kong since the
second half of 2019 and the worldwide spreading of COVID-19 since
the first half of 2020. Amid such negative factors, some of our borrowers
under the money lending business have been severely affected and are
in financial difficulties, and therefore have defaulted on repayment of their
loans and interests on schedules. Therefore, the Group has recognized
the Impairment Loss of approximately HK$37.0 million on part of these
past due loans and interests receivables from such borrowers for the
year ended 30 June 2020 specifically. Nevertheless, the Group has been
taking actions, including but not limited to legal proceedings against these
borrowers, to recover the loan principals, interests and all other related
recovery costs incurred.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group granted several loans in the aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$102.5 million (2019: approximately
HK$122.5 million) to independent third party borrowers with interest
bearing at rates ranging from 8%-24% (2019: 10%—-24%) per annum.
The decline in the loan balance is mainly due to the repayments of the
loans by borrowers during the year.

The interest income from the money lending business for the year ended
30 June 2020 amounted to approximately HK$16.7 million (2019:
approximately HK$23.7 million). The decline in the interest income is
mainly due to the decrease in the average loans balance granted and no
interest income was recognized from the loans to borrowers with financial
difficulties during the year ended 30 June 2020.

The money lending business recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$7.6 million (excluding the Impairment Loss) for the year ended 30
June 2020 as compared to the net profit of approximately HK$11.0
million for the year ended 30 June 2019. The decline is primarily due to
the decline in the interest income during the year ended 30 June 2020.
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Properties in Hong Kong

Due to the adverse economic conditions in Hong Kong from the outbreak
of COVID-19, the prolonged Sino-US trade tensions and the persistent
social unrests in Hong Kong, the market value of most commercial
properties in Hong Kong have been declining since the second half of
2019. As a result, a revaluation loss of approximately HK$13.2 million on
the Group’s commercial properties is recorded based on the independent
valuation as at 30 June 2020.

OUTLOOK
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Labor market competition in Hong Kong has intensified with the
implementation of the SMW which was adjusted upward by 9% in May
2019 and is set to be reviewed every two years. The Group is also facing
higher labor turnover rate in the environmental and cleaning services
industry as more labor tend to work in other less laborious industries
such as the security guard service industry under the same SMW rate.
To offset the increase in labor costs, the Group is striving to transfer
most of the increased labor costs to our customers and implement
more efficient working flows and stringent cost control procedures. The
Group is closely monitoring the labor turnover rate and regularly reviews
our remuneration package in order to maintain sufficient labor force and
cope with the changing environment. We would continue to enhance the
quality of services by providing training to our front line staff.

The economy in Hong Kong has been challenging and in extreme difficult
for the businesses in the transportation and the hotel sectors with the
persistent social unrests in Hong Kong since the second half of 2019
and the worldwide spreading of COVID-19 since the first half of 2020.
Our customers from the transportation and the hotel sections have been
reducing their service requests and asking for the prices reduction since
the second half of 2019. We believe that both of our service income and
profit margin from these two sectors for the second quarter of 2020 must
be further severely affected. To mitigate such downturn effect, we would
strengthen our marketing effort in hope to expand our market shares in
the commercial and the residential sectors and continue to consolidate
our resources to focus on high value customers to bring in additional
revenue by cross-selling other cleaning and waste management services
to our existing customers. We believe this strategy may not only improve
our revenue per customer but also increase our profit margin as we could
leverage our existing manpower to perform services at location where we
already have presence. We would explore other new environmental and
cleaning services to expand our service scope to enable customers to
use the Group as a one-stop cleaning contractor. We would continue to
streamline our operations in order to simplify and improve our operation
efficiency. We believe that our success in serving different sectors will
further build up the confidence for new clients to select our cleaning
services in the coming future.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
A A

BB

RNEECOVID-19 - FEBESHRIFEZR
MEARBEREM D BENEBLEMR T
F BERBOWEVENTEE S —NF
THFR—E T - Alt - BER_ZT_FF
NAZTEMNBIULHE  AEBEmEMESS
E{HEE4913,200,0008 7T ©

A=
BERRERBERRH

BEEREZEREIEER-_FT-NAFHA
EFR YK EMEETRINIEMK - &
BEBNTISHNEF NG o AEEIRERSR
REBRBRBENGSE TRAE - TARES
BTHEMAREEREIELEXTRAREMER
HRNTETIE  fIMRLTEFREE - /K
$HE5 TRCANEVIE AN - AR SR AR D B4
MEs TRAEIR T ZP I EE AN TIER
T R ES R ANEGIIE T - AEBEE SIS
TRAERE BRI RPIOFMEE - AR
FERASE NI FEH T L ROIRIT © TP
HEBBPAIRE TRUEIIRSREELE -

HREBE T NF N EFRBESELS
& NMCOVD-19E — S-S F L¥FRES
REE - BB LB DERNER RBIETTED
FrEt¥mMs s A RkBEREESEH 5=
—NETHEFUR - BOREERERBIEE
MNEF—ERVERBSER - WERRBE - &
MRE —E-TFE-_FERMEEZRE
TENRBFBARFBERSZEE—SHE
FE o BREEBRESE BB REH
T NEAEARN A ERFEEBEHNTISH
B WEBERAEREISEERS  FiBM
REZFPR NHEEMEZMEYEERT -
HREEINI R - R FIAI AIER B A IE
DERMBERNDBEFRRS - Htk H 48
2 BEXBTERSXESNEFMNK
&= MMARFARMAOFIEE - HMEEREAWD
FERIBELBERY - AIERRFIMREE
B FREFPEHAEEELSWMNBEREER °
BB EERBERMOZER  UEERIEAL
BE - HIVFEE  BROERBSRSTESE
MR - BiE—F AR F BB ERRMNS
BERFGIESAZ 0 ©



o,’

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

Environmental and Cleaning Services in the PRC

Together with the extensive business network and operating experience
possessed by the existing management of the Shanghai Operations, the
financial support made by the Group and the management and operating
skills provided by our Group, the Shanghai Operations is expanding as
expected. The Shanghai Operations has been implementing the same
quality control and training program as the same in Hong Kong. The
management of the Shanghai Operations will also refine its marketing
strategies in order to attract more new customers to utilize our cleaning
services in Shanghai, PRC. Through the experience of the Shanghai
Operations, it is believed that the Group would accelerate its expansion
of the environmental and cleaning services into the PRC.

Money Lending Business

With the increasing threat of a downturn of the economy in Hong Kong
and the PRC as a result of the above-mentioned negative factors, the
Group continues its effort in strengthening its risk management policy
and streamlining our existing loan portfolio mix with an aim to reduce our
exposure on high risk loans. A cautious and prudent approach is the key
direction of our money lending strategies that only borrowers with sound
financial abilities would be considered and approved by the Group in the
future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group reported a total revenue
of approximately HK$345.4 million (2019: approximately HK$316.1
million), representing an increase of approximately 9.3%. The increase
is mainly due to the net effect of (i) increase in the revenue from the
environmental and cleaning services business in Hong Kong by
approximately HK$39.0 million to approximately HK$300.6 million for the
year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: approximately HK$261.6 million) as a
result of several service contracts in the commercial and the residential
sectors awarded by the Group; (ii) decrease in the contribution of the
revenue of approximately HK$2.7 million from the Shanghai Operations
as several small cleaning service contracts were lost during the year; and
(i) decrease in the interest income of approximately HK$7.0 million from
the money lending business after decline in the average loans balances
granted by the Group during the year.
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Other Losses and Impairment

Other losses and impairment of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$50.6 million for the year ended 30 June 2020 mainly consisted of (i)
the revaluation loss of approximately HK$13.2 million (2019: HK$Nil) on
the Group’s commercial properties based on the independent valuation as
at 30 June 2020; and (i) the Impairment Loss of approximately HK$37.0
million made for past due loans and interests receivables under the
Group’s money leading business.

Selling, Marketing Expenses and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s selling, marketing and administrative expenses decreased
by approximately HK$1.3 million to approximately HK$25.1 million
(2019: approximately HK$26.4 million) for year ended 30 June 2020.
The decrease was mainly due to decrease in the selling, marketing
and administrative expenses, including but not limited to staff costs,
rental expenses, entertainment expenses, advertising and promotion
expenses, travelling expenses and general office expenses, of the
Group’s headquarters after implementation of the stringent costs control
procedures and simplification of our Group’s corporate structure.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020
decrease by approximately HK$0.4 million to approximately HK$1.5
million (2019: approximately HK$1.9 million) was mainly due to the net
effect of: () the decrease in the interest expense of approximately HK$1.1
million on the convertible bonds which were redeemed in August 2018; (ii)
recognition of interest expenses on the bank borrowings of approximately
HK$0.5 million; and (iii) recognition of interest expenses of approximately
HK$0.1 million on lease liabilities during the year.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2020.

DISCLOSURE OF ADVANCE TO ENTITIES UNDER
RULE 17.22 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Included in the Group’s loans receivables with aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$102.5 million as at 30 June 2020 are the
loans with aggregate principal amount of HK$73.2 million granted to the
below independent third parties under the ordinary course of the Group’s
money lending services which exceed 8% of the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 19.07(1) of the GEM Listing Rules as at 30 June 2020.
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The details of such loans are disclosed under Rule 17.22 of the GEM  AAERH B EIEGEM TR AIE17.221&

Listing Rules as below: BENT :
Gross amount of
Loan the loan as at
Name of amount 30June Interest rate
Date of announcements the borrower granted 2020  perannum  Guarantees and security Repayment terms
R-R2EE
AAZTH
AERE BRAZE/ 14 RYEHEH EREE EHE ERRER ERHR
HK$'000 HKS'000
Tin T
12 December 2017, China Force Enterprises Inc. 22,200 22,200 20%  Personal quarantees executed by the  The Borrower shall pay
1 February 2019 and below independent third parties: interest accrued on the loan
10July 2019 on amonthly basis and shall
- Ms. Shen Jing; and repay the total outstanding

principal amount of the Loan
- Mr. Wen Jidlong, the spouse of  together with any outstanding
Ms. Shen Jing and the sole interest accrued thereon on 11
shareholder of China Force November 2019
Enterprises Inc.

Share charge executed by Ambitions
Investment Holdings Limited, the Sole
Shareholder of the Borrower, to charge
allthe issued shares of the Borrower in

favour of the Lender
“ItEtCETCR (China Force Enterprises Inc. 22200 22,200 % BUTBUESFRIOEARR: BRAESAINEFME:
“F-AE-F-BR HeRER-Z-NE+-R
“Z-NELATR - IFILR T-RERERNARETE

BEERTAFERETTE
— LB REHE(ERChina Force
Enterprises Inc. B — TR AR
Brne

ST —RRAmbitions
Investment Holdings Limited/& T&95%
RRENERABTRAREZETA
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Gross amount of
Loan the loan as at
Name of amount 30June Interest rate
Date of announcements the borrower granted 2020  perannum  Guarantees and security Repayment terms
i 3
AAZTA
MERH BRAZE/ 18 REEHER EXEE FRE  ERRER BRER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL
8 November 2017, Asian Champion Industrial 30,000 29,000 22%  Personal quarantees executed by the  The Borrower shall pay
8 November 2018 and Limited below independent third parties: interest accrued on the loan
31 May 2019 onamonthly basis and shall
- Mr.LiaoLibo, who owns repay the total outstanding
40% equity interest of Asian principal amount of the Loan
Champion Industrial Limited; and  together with any outstanding
interest accrued thereon on 7
- Mr.Cheung Wing Chuen, who  November 2022
owns 60% equity interest of
Asian Champion Indlustrial
Limited
Corporate guarantee executed byJ
ARDRIEERRAT, whichis
owned as to 80% by Mr. Liao Libo
“E-tEH-ANR EoEFERAF 30,000 29,000 2% EUTBUEZRRIMEALR: BRAESAINEIRE
ZE-ET-ANAR HERER-FZZ5+—A
ZE-NERA=T-H - BERTERARATAGRE tREREFMAEELSH
MBUREE: R BEREMRERRTTIE
- FEAEEERARATG0%RIE
Pyl lbit3
BEUR A EFA0WERNIAET
TRIBERRAIRTHRARR
28 June 2017, 16 July 2018 Li Zhong 22,000 22,000 20%  Personal guarantees executed by the  The Borrower shall pay interest
and 13 September 2019 below independent third party: accrued on the loan on a
monthly basis and shall repay
= Ms. Dong Xiao Min the total outstanding principal
amount of the Loan together
with any outstanding interest
accrued thereon on 12 March
2020
ZE—tERAZTR 23 22,000 22,000 0% EUTBUESRRINEALR: BRAESAINETME

"2 \FLATRER
“E-NERATER

V N
16
A A
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Capital Structure and Fund Raising Activities

The shares of the Company are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The Company’s share capital comprises only ordinary shares.

Rights Issue

On 11 April 2018, the Company announced its proposal to raise not less
than HK$48.6 million before expenses by way of a rights issue by issuing
270,000,000 rights shares on the basis of one rights share for every
one shares held by the qualifying shareholders at a subscription price of
HK$0.18 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). 173,024,800 rights shares
are underwritten by Lamtex Securities Limited and Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr.
Yu”), the controlling shareholder of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules, the chief executive officer of the Company and the executive
director of the Company, pursuant to the underwriting agreement dated
11 April 2018 (the “Underwriting Agreement”) entered into between the
Company with each of Lamtex Securities Limited and Mr. Yu subject to
the terms and conditions set out in the Underwriting Agreement.

The Rights Issue was completed on 9 July 2018. The Rights Issue raised
approximately HK$46.7 million after deduction of expenses by issuing
270,000,000 rights shares.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the Rights Issue
as to (i) approximately HK$37,700,000 will be utilized for the Group’s
existing businesses, in particular the money lending business; and (ii)
approximately HK$9,400,000 will be utilized for potential investment
opportunities as and when identified by the Group and/or for general
working capital of the Group.

Details and results of the Rights Issue are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 11 April 2018 and 5 July 2018, the circular of the
Company dated 11 May 2018, the resolution set out in the notice of the
extraordinary general meeting dated 11 May 2018 and the prospectus of
the Company dated 12 June 2018.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to the subscription agreement and the supplemental extension
letter dated 15 June 2017 and 16 August 2017 respectively, Wui
Wo Enterprise Limited (the “Subscriber”) has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue the
zero coupon convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$50 million
(the “Convertible Bonds”), which entitle the Subscriber to convert the
Convertible Bonds into a maximum of 128,205,128 conversion shares
at the conversion price of HK$0.39 per conversion share (as adjusted
by the share consolidation completed on 26 July 2017 and the Rights
Issue completed on 9 July 2018) during 1 year commencing from the
date of the completion of the subscription of the Convertible Bonds (the
“Subscription”). The principal amount of the Convertible Bonds of HK$50
million payable by the Subscriber is satisfied by cash. The Subscription
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 26 July 2017 and completion
of the Subscription took place on 21 August 2017 (the “Issue Date”) with
the net proceeds of approximately HK$49.2 million received.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the Convertible
Bonds as to () as to approximately HK$5.0 million for the set up costs
of the group companies engaging in the margin securities and forex
brokerage business; (i) as to approximately HK$11.0 million the deposits
(the “Deposits”) to be maintained in the prime broker accounts to carry
out the margin securities and forex brokerage businesses; (iii) as to
approximately HK$25 million for the Deposits to finance a loan facility as
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8 November 2017;
(iv) as to approximately HK$4.0 million for the development of the online
trading platform for the margin securities and forex brokerage business;
and (v) as to approximately HK$4.0 million for the general working
capital of the Company, including but not limited to the remuneration of
the management and the operating expenses of the group companies
engaging in the margin securities and forex brokerage business.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the convertible bonds on the Issue
Date of HK$49.2 million had been split into the liability component and
the equity component. As at the Issue Date, the fair value of the liability
component is approximately HK$43.1 million and the equity component is
approximately HK$6.1 million, net of the transaction cost of approximately
HK$0.8 million being allocated proportionally to the liability component
and the equity component. The fair value of the liability component
was calculated using market interest rates for similar non-convertible
bonds by an independent firm of professionally qualified valuer, Norton
Appraisals Holdings Limited. The liability component is subsequently
stated at amortised cost at the effective interest rate of 14.2% per annum
until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the Convertible Bonds.
The residual amount is assigned as the equity component and included
in the shareholders’ equity heading “Convertible bonds equity reserve”.
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No Convertible Bonds had been converted as at 30 June 2018 and up to
20 August 2018, being the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.

The Company fully redeemed the Convertible Bonds on 20 August 2018.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group had financed its
operations and capital requirements through operating cash flows and
bank borrowings.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$65.5 million (2019: approximately HK$53.8 million).
The increase is mainly due to the net effect of (i) acquisition of the
commercial properties as the headquarter of the Group in Hong Kong;
(i) repayment of the loans from the borrowers under the money lending
business; and (i) net cash inflows from the Group’s operating activities.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$126.5 million (2019: approximately HK$194.2 million) and current
ratio of approximately 2.70 times (2019: approximately 4.62 times) which
remain strong and healthy.

As at 30 June 2020, the total debt of the Group were approximately
HK$34.5 million (2019: approximately HK$9.7 million) which include
obligation under a finance lease of HK$NIl (2019: approximately HK$0.05
million), lease liabilities of approximately HK$1.3 million (2019: HK$NIl),
the unlisted corporate bond of approximately HK$9.8 million (2019:
approximately HK$9.7 million) and bank loans of approximately HK$23.4
million (2019: HK$NIl). The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated by
dividing total debt by total equity attributable to owners of the Company)
as at 30 June 2020 was approximately 19.3%, representing an increase
by 14.8% from 4.5% as at 30 June 2019. The significant increase was
mainly due to increase in the bank loans for the acquisitions of the
commercial properties as the headquarter of the Group in Hong Kong.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group is in a strong and healthy
financial position and has sufficient resources to support its operations
and meset its foreseeable capital expenditures and expansions.
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Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had no obligation under a finance lease.
As at 30 June 2019, the Group had obligation under a finance lease of
approximately HK$0.05 million which were repayable within one year and
secured by the relevant motor vehicles with carry values of approximately
HKS$0.02 million.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had bank deposits of approximately
HK$5.3 million (2019: approximately HK$14.9 million) pledged to banks
as security for bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued and
banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had properties with carrying values of
approximately HK$52.4 million (2019: HK$NIil) charged to the bank as
security for the bank loans, bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds
issued and banking facilities granted to the Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period, major portion of the Group’s operations are located
mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk due to the exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against
HK$ arising from the our environmental and cleaning services business
and money lending business in the PRC. The results of our operations
in the PRC are translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates
approximating the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions while their
financial items are translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period, the resulted exchange differences are
recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve of the Company and will be reclassified
to profit or loss until the disposal of interests in such operations.
Fluctuation of RMB against HK$ is moderate to the Group during the
period. The Group will review and monitor its currency exposure from
time to time, and when appropriate hedge its currency risk.
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Information on Employees

The Group had 1,240 employees (2019: 1,077) as at the end of the Year.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with the employees by providing
competitive remuneration package to the employees including salaries,
allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, and training for human
resources upskilling. Total staff costs and related expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 30 June 2020 increased by
approximately 12.8% over that for the same period in previous year. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in the average number of staff of
the environmental and cleaning business in Hong Kong after several new
service contracts were awarded during the year.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

There were neither significant investments held by the Group as at 30
June 2020 nor material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries made by
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2020.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 30 June 2020, our capital expenditures mainly
included acquisitions of commercial properties located in Hong Kong,
plant and equipment amounting to approximately HK$70.9 million. These
capital expenditures were funded by funds generated from our operating
activities and bank loans.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

V N
22
A A

Performance bond

Guarantees on performance bonds in
respect of environmental and cleaning
service contracts

TR PER

IR SRR IRIS A KX

RABE
(a) BHRE
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2020 2019
R-B-ZF RIT-hI#F
~A=TH ~NA=+H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEZR) (fe#==Z)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
14,810

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued
for due performance under several environmental and cleaning
service contracts of the Group’s environmental and cleaning
services business in Hong Kong.

As at 30 June 2020, the restricted bank fixed deposits of
approximately HK$5.3 million (2019: approximately HK$14.9 million),
the properties with carrying values of approximately HK$47.8 million
(2019: HK$Nil) and the corporate guarantee from the Company and
a subsidiary of the Group were pledged to banks as security for (i)
bank facilities of approximately HK$20.3 million (2019: HK$14.8
million) granted to the Group; and (ii) bankers’ guarantees on
performance bonds issued.

The effective period of performance bonds is based on the service
period and the contract terms as specified in these environmental
and cleaning service contracts. The performance bonds may be
claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group fail to meet
the standards as specified in these environmental and cleaning
service contracts.

Litigations — Employees personal injuries

During the year, the Group may from time to time be involved in
litigations concerning personal injuries by its employees or third
party claimants. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group had no
any significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations as all
potential claims made by these employees and third party claimants
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements and
covered by insurance protection.
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently consists of five
Directors comprising two executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr. Yu”), aged 35, was appointed as executive
Director on 28 October 2016, the chief executive officer of the Company
on 28 November 2017 and the chairman of the Board on 2 July 2019.
He served as non-executive director of China New Energy Power
Group Limited (P EI#76EJRE) N EE B R A A)) (now known as Lamtex
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1041) from 14 March 2016 to 30 August 2016.
He is currently the chairman of FRFE= 2 E % BR A 7] (Shaanxi Hengze
Industrial Corporation Limited*), which is principally engaged in investment
in and development of energy, mining, environmental-preservation, real
estate, and tourism businesses. Furthermore, he is a supervisor of SE
MM ELZR R A R & T 2 7] (Uaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability
Company?*), a company which China National Petroleum Corporation
(P A B RARSEE R A has indirect interest in it, which principally
engaged in (i) construction and re-construction of city gas infrastructures;
(i) design and engineering of expansion work and related installation and
development management; (iii) transportation, sale, provision of after
sale service, research and development of technologies and provision of
consultancy service in relation to city gas; (iv) construction and operation
of various types of gas station; (v) sale of petroleum and natural gas
related equipment; and (vi) construction, operation management of
compressed natural gas projects. Both Mr. Yu and /& B 22 17 1 BLZ B4
RAEREHERF (Ulaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability Company*) have
been members of the China Gas Association (F Bl A i €).

Mr. Lai Tin Ming (“Mr. Lai”), aged 35, was appointed as an executive
Director on 31 July 2018. He graduated from the Lingnan University,
Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration in 2008.
He joined our Group in July 2010 as a sales and marketing executive
of Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS”), a main operating
subsidiary of the Company engaging in the provision of environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong. He was promoted to the chief
executive officer of PPS in February 2018 and is primarily responsible for
our group’s environmental and cleaning services business including the
recruitment of personnel, approval of budgets, quality control of cleaning
projects, procurement of cleaning materials and equipment, workplace
safety and site supervision.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching Jack (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 37, was appointed
as independent non-executive director (the “Director”) of the Company
and a Chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company on 25 April
2016 and 31 July 2018 respectively. He received his degree of Master
of Laws in commercial and corporate law from King’s College London,
United Kingdom in November 2006 and his Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws and degree of Bachelor of Laws from City University of Hong
Kong in July 2005 and November 2004 respectively. He was admitted
to practise as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2008. He is practising
in Hong Kong and is currently an associate of a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong. Mr. Kwong was an independent non-executive director of Hao Bai
International (Cayman) Limited (Stock code: 8431), a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, until his resignation in 16 May 2018.

Mr. Meng Enhai (“Mr. Meng”), aged 34, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of Company on 31 July 2018. He obtained a bachelor degree
in laws from Xian University of Technology (F8% 3 T AE2) in July 2010.
He joined Bk 78 5k 5= 1 12 A = 5 AT (ShanXi Yong Jia Xin Law Office®)
(“Yong Jia Xin Law Office”) in 2010 and serves, at present, as a senior
practicing lawyer and a partner of Yong Jia Xin Law Office for providing
legal services to listed companies in the PRC. He was once the author of
several books relating to the commerce law proceedings and the stock
listing in the PRC.

Mr. Wang Cui (“Mr. Wang”), aged 36, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and a remuneration committee of
the Company on May 2020. He obtained a bachelor degree in Economics
from The University of Warwick of in July 2005. He joined Rolls-Royce
plc in United Kingdom in September 2005 and had roles as Market
Analyst for Asia and Middle East regions, Sales Manager for America
and Europe regions and Sales Director for Global and Vice President for
Greater China customer business. He was transferred to Rolls-Royce
China Holdings Limited in Beijing in May 2016 and now serves as Senior
Vice President of the Civil Aerospare division of Rolls-Royce China
Holdings Limited to oversee its sales, marketing, commercial, account
management, field support, service delivery and engineering sections in
Greater China. He was awarded the “2015 Young Exporter of the Year”
by the British Exporters Association in recognition to his contribution to
the British export industry.

*

For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEAER

Our senior management comprises our executive Directors and our KNS HEREAERIEHITEE LA AW
company secretary. £o

Mr. Chan Woon Wing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 39, was appointed as the  BRIGEZEKXE(TREE]D - 395 - N-T—~F

company secretary of the Company on 3 October 2016. He is amember +A=HEZTAARRBZARMWE - HASE

of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over EBE:EAEEE8  WHREHFEHBLESHE

10 years of experience in financial reporting and auditing. Prior to joining B B 10F &8 - R -_Z—NFEMALREEH

the Group in 2014, Mr. Chan had served at the audit department of an B + BRIE A ST BB BT A a1 EtaprTE

international audit firm for six years. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2014 /X% o MREA R - Z—INEMARER - B A
= BEAR

and is mainly responsible for overseeing the company secretary work of EFE2EBEEEARARZ ARIMEIE -
the Company now.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are (i) the provision of environmental and cleaning services;
and (ii) the provision of money lending services in Hong Kong and PRC.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from pages 86 to 87 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular shown in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section from pages 8 to 22 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some of which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates. The Directors have established a policy to
ensure that significant risks which may adversely affect the Group, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.
The Group has identified the following key risks that are considered to
be significant to the Group, which may adversely and/or materially affect
the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations and
growth prospects. Key risks relating to the Group’s businesses and to
the industries in which the Group operates are including but not limited
to:

Environmental and Cleaning Services
Customers

(i) A majority of the service contracts have fixed service terms that
range from one to three years and many of them are granted to
the Group by way of tendering. There is no assurance of the grant
of new contracts nor renewal of the existing contracts and these
uncertainties may have negative impact on the financial results of
the Group. Moreover, in the competitive tendering process, the
Group may have to lower the service charges in the bids in order
to increase the competitiveness of the tenders and the Group
may encounter great pressure on the profit margins if the Group is
unable to reduce the costs accordingly. In such event, the financial
results and profitability would be materially and adversely affected.

(i) Most of the service contracts of the Group are fixed-price contracts,
under which the Group provides the cleaning and related services
at a pre-determined price. If the Group fails to accurately estimate
the costs or fail to execute fixed-price contracts within the cost
estimates, the results of operation would be adversely affected. As
a result, the Group may not be able to adjust the service fees nor
recover any cost overruns, which may in turn adversely affect the
reputation, financial conditions, profitability or liquidity.
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(i)  The aggregate revenue generated from the five largest customers
of the environmental and cleaning services represented nearly
34.6% of the total revenue of the environmental and cleaning
services for the year ended 30 June 2020. The Group does not
enter into long-term service contracts with any of these customers,
which the Directors believe is in line with the market practice of the
environmental services industry in Hong Kong. These customers
may terminate their business relationships with the Group upon
expiry of the service contracts. If any of the key customers, including
these five largest customers, substantially reduces the volume
and/or value of services procured from the Group or terminates its
business relationship with the Group, there is no assurance that
the Group would be able to find substitute customers or to secure
comparable contracts to replace any such loss of revenue. If any
of the above happens, the business and performance would be
materially adversely affected.

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation
of the Group. We places great emphasis on quality control. We have
obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001, and are committed
to delivering professional services and achieving customer satisfaction.
To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments and
communicate with our clients before commencing services. We have a
comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality Management
Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and objectives. During
the performance of our services, our employees will carry out regular
check on the service quality, including services delivered by the Group’s
own employees and third-party service providers, and record occasions
of substandard performance and any follow-up actions taken.

Budgeting is the key factor of our business operations. To formulate the
reasonable and competitive pricing, we carefully prepare, review and
discuss, among the management and operation teams, the details of
budget for every service contract based on our 20 years more experience
in the environmental and cleaning industry and latest market information.
During the performance of our services, any deviations from the budgets
are seriously investigated and monitored for, if any, remedy actions and
recorded for our reference in coming budgeting.

Service mix, service quality and competitive pricing, which are regarded as
key to good relationship with our customers, are continuously reviewed
with the aim to cater for our customers’ fast-changing needs and
enhance their satisfactions and business relationship with the Group.
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Employees

U

(i)

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
the insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against
certain risk. Employees who suffer from bodlily injuries or death as
a result of accidents or diseases occurred during the course of
their employment are entitled to claim damages and compensation
against the Group under the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
as well as under the common law. The Group has taken out
insurance policies to cover these potential claims, including
employees’ compensation insurance and public liability insurance.
However, the outcome of any claim is subject to the relevant parties’
negotiation or the decision of the court or the relevant arbitration
authorities, and the result of any of the outstanding claims may
be unfavourable to the Group. As a result, the Group may have to
pay out of the own resources for any uninsured financial or other
losses, damages and liabilities and litigation that could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial conditions and results of
operations.

The Group has experienced high turnover rate of the operation
team and the operation could be adversely affected by difficulties
in recruiting and retaining sufficient workforce to meet the needs.
As the environmental and cleaning services industry is a labour-
intensive industry, this exacerbated after the implementation of the
SMW in Hong Kong as workers have more choices, such as security
guards, which may drive workers away from the cleaning industry.
If the Group is unable to maintain the stability of the staff or retain
sufficient number of staff members to perform the service contracts
or fill the vacancies with suitable staff or services from suitable
third party service providers, the quality of services, operation and
financial results would be adversely affected.

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt.
The Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings
to the Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the
importance of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment
process. It also provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working
environment. In order to help cater for the continuous development of the
employees, professional trainings and self development sponsorships are
provided. The Group values any feedback from employees and hopes to
maintain open communication with the latter, which favours a good and
long-lasting relationship.
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Money Lending Business

U

Any adverse changes in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange
rates, equity prices and property prices in Hong Kong as well as
the PRC may generally affect market demands and the repayment
abilities of customers which may lead to adverse impact on the
Group’s revenue and liquidity. The Group would from time to time
fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures,
in particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market
situation.

Non-compliance with or any changes in the relevant laws and
regulations may bring various consequences to the Group, including
but not limited to the revocation or suspension of the money lenders
licence and/or the imposition of penalties resulting from the offence.
Relevant operation policies and procedures have been adopted
and in place to ensure that the daily operation of the Group is
in compliance with the relevant requirements. Internal reporting
procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employees and customers’ misconduct and/or fraud arises, any
staff can report directly to the management. The staff handbook
has also stipulated that employees and customers’ misconduct and
fraud are prohibited.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to operating in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of various stakeholders including the Group’s
employees, customers, suppliers and the community.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its
various stakeholders are set out in the paragraph headed “Social” in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section from pages 64
to 73 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise our environmental impact by raising
energy efficiency and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials such as the adoption of paperless systems and practices in
its daily operations, the duplex printing and copying, and the recycling
of ink cartridges and toner cartridges, etc. In addition, the Group has
adopted environmentally-friendly service procedures in providing the
environmental and cleaning services to its customers for which the Group
has obtained certificates and awards from different environmentally-
oriented organisations.

Further details of about the Group’s environmental policies are set out in
the paragraph headed “Environmental” in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” section from pages 58 to 64 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the PRC and
the Company itself is listed on GEM. In light of this, the Group upholds
high corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the
respective jurisdictions. Reviews on regulatory compliance of its business
operation are conducted from time to time. During the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has been in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on its listing status in Hong Kong, the environmental and cleaning
services and the money lending business which mainly include but
not limited to the GEM Listing Rules, the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
and the MLO.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$10,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the reasons, classes and consideration received for the issue
of shares during the year are set out in the paragraph headed “Capital
Structure and Fund Raising Activities” in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section from pages 17 to 19 of this annual report.

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 28(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
90 and 91 of this annual report and note 32(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounting to approximately HK$104.6 million (2019:
HK$105.2 million) calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and financial position for the past five
financial years is set out on page 192 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s revenue and subcontracting costs
attributable to the Group’s major customers, subcontractors and
suppliers respectively for the year ended 30 June 2020 is as follows:

Revenue Wz

The largest customer BAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate hAREFEE
Subcontracting costs DERAR
The largest subcontractor AN EE
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate ARDBEEE

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and suppliers.
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Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Yu Shaoheng

Mr. Lai Tin Ming
RRAASEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
e e

Mr. Meng Enhai
RRERE

Mr. Wang Cui - appointed on 18 May 2020
THESE - RZEZTFRAT/\BEZT

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong - resigned on 18 May 2020
FEREMSEE - RZEZTFRAT/\BEHE

The newly appointed independent non-executive director is subject to  FTEZ (B IEHITE BBIRIBEARA TS
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general  ZRRAABIARNAFIRERAFAE tIHESEN
meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. [EEEIT -

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the &ESHEBAAREBETRKE QAR ARE
Group which is not terminable by the relevant employer within one year ~ F AR —F RN R EE CETEEERIN) T
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation. BIEBWRIBEEL -

During the year and up to date of this annual report, the executive FRANRBEEAFRALY  HAITEEREZT LR
Directors, Yu Shaoheng and Lai Tin Ming are also directors in certain KA ARATE THBATINES - FAK
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s HBZEAFHRALH @ AAGMBAGINHMES
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report  BIEMRIELE S E « FRIEESE A ~ BREk 4 - #
include Mr. Chan Woon Wing, Mr. Chan Chok Fun, Mr. Lu Yi, Mr. Tse  FEELERGHELAE ©

Bing Wah and Mr. Yang Guang Wei.
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EHERARAT 3k 2020 \33/_



D sl

DIRECTORS’ REPORT &€&

RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong (“Mr. Wong”) resigned as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company due to his other business commitments and engagements
with effect from 18 May 2020. Mr. Wong has confirmed that he has no
disagreements with the Board and there are no other matters relating
to his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock
Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 23 to 25 of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of job,
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees, as
well as the result of the Group and the market trend. The Group carries
out staff performance appraisal once a year and the assessment result is
used for salary reviews and promotion decisions.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance their skills
and knowledge. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
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SHARE OPTIONS L

(1) Share Option Scheme (1) BERETE

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the date of adoption, after which period no further options will be
offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect
to options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing
prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (i) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Person
concerned for such period as determined by the Board, being a
date not later than ten business days after the offer date by which
the Eligible Person must accept the offer or be deemed to have
declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the Board to the grantee which the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine, save that such period shall not be more than
ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer (subject to the
provisions for early termination in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme).
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The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the Board.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) in
respect of which the share options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at
the date of the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November
2018 at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all the share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of the Shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together with any
options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in issue
shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each Eligible Person (including both exercised
and outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme) in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Where any further grant of the share options to an Eligible
Person would result in excess of such limit shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders at general meeting with such Eligible Person
and his associates abstaining from voting.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, no share options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 30 June 2020, the total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 54,000,000
shares, representing 10% and 10% of the Shares in issue as at 30 June
2020 and 28 September 2020, being the date of this annual report,
respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2020, none of the Directors and
the chief executive and their respective associates had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within of the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
company in which of ordinary  Long/short share capital
Name of Director interest is held Capacity shares  position in the Company
REFRER EARAT2H
2 BEEHAREE g LERAH HE %R ERITRAEDL
Mr. Yu Shaoheng The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 350,536,631 Long 64.91%
RATRAE NG Bxma A e
Note: BisE -

1. Mr. Yu Shaoheng is the son of Mr. Yu Weiye and the step-son of Ms. Mui
Fong.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR
Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2020, no person other than HTXFH)S‘ZE%%M\ CTRIZEZEFRNA=T
certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests CBEAMAT(RRARIETESHEEST

or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of E&AE\%M\)E’;\$”D\E%T§? B GD REFH
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders  F#i#H @ WE LR AR RIRIEFES RS
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or fﬁﬂ%S%ﬂ%ﬁﬁT%E’]‘Igﬁﬁﬁﬁéaﬂ%ﬂ’ﬂﬂﬂ%
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of ek B - SRIEE S M HEIEHIEXVERE2
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly N 535 E8&938 F 7B A AN A B4 B8 B E Al 4 25
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share KA @ X 5k B 1 ok B % A F 0 48 5l IR A
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of (% AJ FE (R A 15 0 F A AN £ E TR B A &)

any member of the Group. E’JHX%K‘\L&mE’JﬁE*‘J) KT B 5%k LA 4
Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
Name of company in which of ordinary Long/short share capital
Shareholder interest is held Capacity shares position in the Company
REHFER EARDA 2
RRER BEEHDARERE 54 LEREE  HER/ KA ERITRABDL
Mr. Yu Weiye The Company Beneficial owner 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
REERE /NG BEHBAA HE
Ms. Mui Fong The Company Interests of spouse (Note 1) 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
55 R VN Bl SR (fiir) e
Note: PitsE
1. Ms. Mui Fong (“Ms. Mui”) is the wife of Mr. Yu. Ms. Mui is deemed to be 1.  #F (L) BREEZET - RIEE
interested in 54,431,400 Shares owned by Mr. Yu in accordance with the A REEIEN - L TR ARALERZEN
Securities and Futures Ordinance. 54,431,400/ B 19 R B i 2 o
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

During the year ended 30 June 2020, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public during the year ended
30 June 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year and up to date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, controlling shareholders and their respective associates as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules is interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There are no related party transactions as set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements that falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under the
GEM Listing Rules during the year.

The material related party transactions are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 41 to 53 of this annual
report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”), who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having been
approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a
resolution to re-appoint Baker Tilly as the auditors of the Company and
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020 has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operations and financial position. The Group
has actively put in place measures in mitigating its impact. The Group will
closely monitor the development and will keep its alleviating measures
under regular review.

On behalf of the Board

Yu Shaoheng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in order to uphold the transparency of the Group and
safeguard interests of the Shareholders.

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2020.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code
for the year ended 30 June 2020 and up to the date of this annual report,
except for the deviations of the following Codes.

()  Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year under review and up to the
date of this annual report, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company is performed by the executive
Director, Mr. Yu Shaoheng. The Company considered that under
the supervision of its Board and its independent non-executive
Directors, a balancing mechanism existed so that the interests
of the Shareholders were adequately and fairly represented. The
Company considered that there was no imminent need to change
the arrangement.

(i) The Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that all non- executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Currently, all non-executive Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term. They
are, however, subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election
of directors in the articles of association of the Company. Since their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those set out in the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed securities
during the blackout periods before the publication of announcements of
financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required standards
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors throughout the period under review. The Company was not
aware of any non-compliance in this respect throughout the year ended
30 June 2020.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner.
Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company. Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to:

e approval of the Group’s long term strategy, policies and annual
budgets;
e oversight of the Group’s operations and management;

e approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

e approval of major changes to the Group’s corporate structure,
management and control structure;

e approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;
e responsible for internal control and risk management; and

e approval of matters in relation to Board membership and Board
remuneration.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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As at 30 June 2020 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five Directors, including two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, of which one independent non-
executive Director has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise in order to achieve
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance, as set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Tin Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 23 to 25
of this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering for its
Directors.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) among other members of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent. None of the
independent non-executive Directors has served the Company for more
than 9 years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions specified in Code
Provision D.3.1, which include reviewing the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, our Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements (including the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision
A.6.5 of the Code regarding continuous professional development.
During the year, the Company had arranged a training session to all
Directors in regards to director’s duty which was conducted by an
external professional firm. In addition, Directors also reviewed the reading
materials related to corporate governance and regulations that provided
to them concerning latest developments in corporate governance
practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments.

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without a specific employment tenure, but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Shareholders after their appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in other clauses in the articles of
association of the Company or in any agreement between the Company
and such Directors (but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement), the Directors can be removed from office by notice
in writing served upon him or her signed by not less than three-fourths in
number of the total number of Directors then in office (or, if that is not a
round number, the nearest lower round number) and for the avoidance
of doubt, the counting of the total number of Directors then in office shall
include such Director subject to the proposed removal.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

V N
44 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
A 4

N ,M\Aﬁd:

ESRIIRERRE

BREERD TRIE/ANRREZNRE ALK
NAMEE KFEPHRER -

EFAEST AR TANREAS.5IRA T A R
BEXERORE - FA - ARAEREHEE

ELHEAEEREMNEI - MEBEIIBEN
BREE QAT » Lo BEFHREEHAR

SRHEEMEEE R RROINEEME - AR
FAREEEAERNRMERAMABRERR

EEER-

EXET BEECRER

BERZANPITEERBIUIFRITESL A
EERMBFY  EERBAARAMERMA
ERRBFERE LmESRENMEEET -

REAXFABERAR EEERREFK
gL ER=NZ - WEFAREREI  ESE
NEBELARIB=FHRERT R - BET

BERNREIEZTANBERAF RS LBEE
E-FERESSLRTEMBRERNES
ﬁE%EiﬁﬁﬁéﬁéémhﬁﬁAﬁt
WARZAE LEREE MAEEESS
TMAREEFENES HE%EITEk
RBFAREARL  ERBNEERBRET-

REBEARBZZABERMAA  BEARAZ
AEERARNEMEREI AR EEEES
A1 SR E A I A AR R AR E (B A
%%Eﬁ%%%ZE@E%%E%%%T%

PREANEZXERERETESTBLARPTD
DPRMA =2 EF(HIFES - AINAREZIIR

BERHBAE)RENEMAN  AIRLESEH
% ReER ERAECEEZRAABERR

BEERIABESE °

REEMERANEEEMKE AR LA HE
ETAR—FRLNEECEERERIN T
RIEIRIBA L) ©



¢ e

N H

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &A%

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of
reference are set out in the Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 May 2013 with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraphs C3.3 and C3.7 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
control systems, as well as the overall risk management of the Group,
reviewing the consolidated financial statements and the quarterly, interim
and annual reports of the Group, and reviewing the terms of engagement
and scope of audit work of the external auditors. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditors. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the accounting staff, compliance officer or auditors.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year and up to the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui
(appointed on 18 May 2020)
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong
(resigned on 18 May 2020)

The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified industry
experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the Group
the financial and accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, its internal controls and financial reporting matters and the above
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

AC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 4/4
Mr. Meng Enhai 4/4
Mr. Wang Cui 0/0
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong 4/4

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of
the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
and nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and reappointment of Directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year and up to
the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui
(appointed on 18 May 2020)
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong
(resigned on 18 May 2020)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance in compliance with
paragraph A.6 of the Code.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination
Committee shall carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
and also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. Qualified candidates then be recommended to the
Board for approval.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting
are as follows:

NC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 1/1
Mr. Wang Cui 0/0
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong 1/1

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among
other things, formulating and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy, determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2020 by band is set out as follows:
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Nil to 1,000,000 Z£%1,000,000

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in the notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year and up
to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui
(appointed on 18 May 2020)
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong (resigned on 18 May 2020)

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

RC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 1/1
Mr. Wang Cui 0/0
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong 1/1

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year,
and Directors shall receive at least 7 days prior written notice of such
meetings in compliance with paragraph A.1.1 of the Code. Agendas and
accompanying papers are sent before the Board meetings to ensure that
the Directors are given sufficient time to review the same.

During the year under review, the Board held five board meetings and 1

general meeting. The Directors attended those meetings in person, by
phone or through other electronic means of communication.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings during
the year under review is set out below:

Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Board  General
Name of Directors Meeting  Meeting
Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Shaoheng 5/5 01
Mr. Lai Tin Ming 5/5 11
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 5/5 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 5/5 11
Mr. Wang Cui 0/0 0/0

(appointed on 18 May 2020)

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong 5/5 0/1

(resigned on 18 May 2020)

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company Secretary and are available to all
Directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts
and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for
the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s auditors, Baker Tilly, acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020,
which are set out in “Independent Auditors Report” section on pages 81
to 85 of this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 30 June 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$725,000 and HK$6,000 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that proper and
effective risk management and internal control systems (the “RMIC
System”) of the Group are maintained. The senior management of the
Company is delegated with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control system to manage risks. The senior management of
the whole Group, including but not limited to, the directors, executives
and super of the major operating units of the Group, maintains, monitors
and implements the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Group’s RMIC System include a defined management structure
with specified limits of authority, which are designed to achieve business
objectives and goals, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, control over operating and capital expenditures, ensure
the maintenance of proper books and records for providing reliable
financial information used for internal or publication purposes, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and risks to be exposed, and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operations
systems achievement of the Group’s objectives and goals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practice and RMIC System. The Group has established
controlling teams (the “Controlling Teams”) nominated by the Board and
the Audit Committee comprising the directors, executives and supervisors
of the major operating units of the Group to take up the responsibilities
of monitoring the day-to-day operational management, risk management
function, and internal control systems of all operating units of Group,
integrating with the systems of monthly and annual planning and
budgeting process, counter-approval and implementation and control
process, identifying any risk or possible failure of the operating units, and
reporting and making suggestions on how each operating unit to achieve
the objectives and goals set. The controlling teams meet regularly with
the Board and the Audit Committee and report on matters to be updated
to the Board and the Audit Committee timely.
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Risk Management Approach

The Group strives to identify and assess the key risks faced by the Group
based on the following risk management approach:

(i) Risks Identification

The Controlling Teams are responsible for identifying potential
risks, through periodically reviewing the Group’s business and
financial data, testing the effectiveness of the Group’s existing
internal control procedures and policies; and

All staff are required and encouraged to report any risks,
particularly those risks that are material weaknesses and
deviation in the Group’s existing internal control procedures
and policies, to the Controlling Teams or the Board and the
Audit Committee.

(i) Risks Assessment and Measurement

Risks identified or reported are further evaluated and
scrutinised, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising
processes by the Controlling Teams;

Material risks that may seriously affect the business, operational
or financial aspects of the Group are immediately handled by
the Controlling Teams, the Board and the Audit Committee;
and

Immaterial risks that are acceptable to the Group will be closely
monitored by the Controlling Teams to ensure that the level of
risk will not increase to an unacceptable level.

(iii) Risks Control and Mitigation

Considering and weighting the benefits and costs of all
available solutions and choosing the appropriate ones;

Elimination of the material risks entirely by taking immediate
remedy actions such as modifying the Group’s existing
business strategies, internal controls and operational
procedures; and

Mitigation of the material risks by reducing their impact as
much as possible such as transferring the impact of the risks
to third parties and implementing alternative procedures and
policies.

(iv) Risks Monitoring

The Board and the Audit Committee in conjunction with the
Controlling Teams closely monitor the risks identified and the
progress of the remedy actions taken to ensure that the level
of risk will not increase to an unacceptable level; and

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are
submitted by the Controlling Teams to the Board and the Audit
Committee annually for their review.
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During the year, the Controlling Teams has summarized the risks
identified and reviewed the effectiveness of the RMIC System. The
findings have been summarised and submitted to the Board and the
Audit Committee for review. The Board and the Audit Committee
concluded that the RMIC System is effective and adequate and the
principal risks identified have been adequately controlled.

The principal risks identified and related control procedures are set out in
the paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the “Directors’
Report” section from pages 27 to 30 of this annual report respectively.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as stated in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group ensures the information is not false or misleading
as to a material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public.

Certain policies and procedures have been taken by the Group to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include but not limited
to (i) trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care;
(i) confidentiality documents are kept by the designated personnel
and placed in the designated locked areas; (i) transmission of inside
information in electronic form should be password-protected; and (iv)
access of inside information is restricted to designated employees on a
need-to-know basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s process
and communications among Board members and with the Shareholders
and the management, and advising the Board and its committees on
all corporate governance matters. He reports to the Board and/or the
Managing Director and his selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have accessed to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. The company secretary took more than 15
hours’ professional training for the year ended 30 June 2020.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
1o be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Office A, 12/F, Tower A, Capital Tower, No. 38
Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions and inquiries, to the relevant executive officer of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to the Shareholders and the investing public. The Company’s corporate
website is www.ppsintholdings.com.

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM website
(http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s corporate
website as soon as practicable after their release. The Company’s
constitutional documents are also available on our website. No significant
changes were made to these documents during the year ended 30 June
2020. Information on the website shall be updated on a regular basis.

Share registration matters shall be handled for the Shareholders by the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 54/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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The Company is delighted to present its second Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report”). This ESG Report
herein focuses on providing an overview of the environmental and social
aspects of the Group, and outlines how we continually improve our
operational strategy in regard to our environment and society in order to
cope with the global standards of sustainability.

During the process of preparing this ESG Report, the Group has
conducted thorough review and evaluation of the existing policies and
practices. Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the data of
all operating units, i.e. the money lending business and the environmental
and cleaning services business, of the Group.

REPORT SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
(“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In order to comply with the disclosure obligations of “comply or explain”
provisions, this ESG Report has outlined the overall Group’s performance
in environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement for the financial year ended 30 June 2020
(“Reporting Period”). HKEX’s Guide for this ESG Report from pages 74 to
80 of this annual report is provided for cross-referencing purpose.

The Group acknowledges the importance of proper disclosure of
business activities, believing it as the key to building trust with investors
and shareholders. This ESG Report will highlight the following aspects:

e  Emissions, use of resources and generation of waste;
e  Employment and Labour Practices;

e Operating Practices; and

e Community Investment.

For details on corporate governance of the Company, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” section from pages 41 to 53 of this
annual report.

For details in relation to our financial performance during the Reporting
Period, please refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section and the audited financial statements together with related notes
from pages 8 to 22 and pages from 86 to 191 of this annual report
respectively.
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Materiality Assessment

To ensure prompt and proper management of key sustainability
issues, our Group has compiled and prioritized material aspects
relating to business operations. Material aspects are those that reflect
the Group’s significant economic, environmental and social impacts;
or that substantially influence the assessments and decisions of our
stakeholders. In addition, we have included key performance indicators
(“KPI") in the Report in order to provide our stakeholders and the public
a more comprehensive and profound understanding of the effectiveness
of the implemented operational strategies in pursuing environmental
sustainability. These priorities allow us to uphold our commitment to our
stakeholders while managing the impacts we have on the society and
environment.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business, we make use of various communication channels to
understand and engage our stakeholders. We believe that stakeholder
engagement helps us in better understanding the needs and concerns
of all our key stakeholders. The probable points of concern of the
stakeholders and the way of our communication and responses are listed
below.
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Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

BHE T REEAE B BEEEmpE

HKEX Compliance with listing rules, and timely and Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
accurate announcements. updates, and announcements.

BB S By FTARR REERHEAE o g B ITiEDy  5HEl - EHEHREAE -

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government inspections,

preventing tax evasion, business ethics, and
social welfare.

BRF BPEERBRO - Bk Rt @E A TE -

Investors and Corporate governance, business strategies and
shareholders performance, and investment returns.

KREE MR BEER  ¥BRERRERR - URIEEDR

tax returns, ongoing communication with relevant
government departments, and other information.
BEIRFD - BUTRE - @Rk - SRR
EBPIE A A R H A B R o

Briefing sessions and seminars, interviews,
shareholders’ meetings, issue of financial reports
or operation reports for investors, ESG report,
and media and analysts.
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Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

BHE AT REEAE B BB R

Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental Newsletters on the Company’s website.
protection, and human rights.

HER AR REES - RERRAK - TEAN A RIAE L B IR AR o

Suppliers Corporate reputation, payment schedule, and Site visits.
stable demand.

HrEm EBRE  NRERREEERK - BHFFAD ©

Customers Service quality, service delivery schedule, After-sales services.
reasonable prices, service value, and personal
data protection.

LSS RIEE X - RISIREEE - SBER  RIFE S-R% -

B R EABURRE

Employees Rights and benefits of employees, Union activities, trainings, interviews with
compensation, training and development, work employees, internal memos, and employee
hours, occupational health and safety, and suggestion boxes.
working environment.

1’8 EEMEFNRER - @E  FIHEFEE T IEH - 5 BEEFHK HFEABEBE=ER
R BERERTEZURITIERE RUEEERME -

Community Community environment, employment Community activities, employee voluntary
opportunities, community development, and activities, and community welfare subsidies and
social welfare. donations.

Fan= HERE  EREHE dRERIEGEN - HRET BEERILED - HRENFHIE RSB
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

BEARET

Our outstanding business performance has earned us various industry ~ H IS MM EEE DR MHRERZTEEE -

awards which have further reinforced our position in the market. The

Group continues to be recognized for its efforts to promote corporate A HWHEITTREMH @S EMESRA - N&R5
social responsibilities. The following table shows what we have achieved — RILFIRA R & HINERIS HIR R o

during the Reporting Period.

Organisers

EZ ]

Awards

3]

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management
PEEXCEEREHE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TEBECXREERS

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management
PEFECEEERE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management
PEEBECEERE RS

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

PEEmECEERRE
Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TEBECXEERE

Association of China Enterprise

hEEELEHE

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFEFABRAR

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFFHRAA

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFFHBRA A

Environmental Protection Department

RIBREE

Qualification Level Certificate of China Cleaning Industry —
National 1st Level Qualification

HEBERBERITESREL —BER—R

China Top 100 Cleaning Service Enterprises

PEERRIBSITRARMBE

Quialification of Stone Cleaning and Maintenance

AMERRERE

Qualification of High-Altitude Facades Cleaning

BEIMNEIESREE

Qualification of Central Air-Conditioning System Cleaning and
Maintenance

EhERARGEABEEE

Quialification of Indoor Environment Purification and Monitoring
TARFFCEENEYS

Qualification of Property Cleaning Trusteeship
MEBRTEEE

ISO 9001:2015

ISO 14001:2015

ISO 45001:2018

Certificate of Commendation for joining the Carbon Footprint
Repository for Listed Companies in Hong Kong
=GR - BE LT RAIRE T ERE
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Awards

#RI5

Organisers

ES ]

Environmental Campaign Committee
BHEDEEE

Environmental Campaign Committee

Wastewi$e — Excellence Level
R EE — 2R T

Environmental Initiatives and Participation — Hong Kong Awards

for Environmental Excellence

REEHLEE

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

BEEteREEe R R E
ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

As an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise, the
Group values environmental sustainability and has been striving to
integrate the concept into every part of its daily business operations.
We are committed to increasing the efficiency of resources utilization
and enhancing our environmental performance by adopting world-class
environmental protection practices in our business dealings.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working environment
by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste management,
supporting environmental education and promoting the idea of recycling
and reusing. The operation and administrative department constantly
reviews our internal operational practices to ensure that they are in line
with the concept of sustainable corporate development. Policies and
measures were strengthened and improved this year so as to effectively
manage undesirable environmental impact.

The Group is currently undergoing an expansion of the environmental
and cleaning services business in the PRC, especially in Shanghai, the
PRC. It is expected that the scale and quality of services provided by our
operations will be further increased and improved in the following years.
Since the Group’s businesses are mainly based in Hong Kong during the
Reporting Period, this ESG Report will mainly focus on the environmental
issues and relevant measures that are applicable to the operating units in
Hong Kong.
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To achieve the environmental goals, the Group has implemented the
following measures:

e Comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations;

° Identify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental impacts
associated with the Group’s activities;

e  Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of environmental
stewardship within the entire workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with the provision of
necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including but
not limited to Environmental Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-
compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in relation
to environmental issues.

Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly resulted from
three types of activities, including but not limited to direct vehicle
emissions, direct air-conditioning at offices and factories, and indirect
emissions from employees travelling by air.

In the absence of production process, the direct GHG emissions
generated from our business activities are minimal, and our services
provided do not make direct nor material impacts on the environment.

Nevertheless, we have implemented various measures to minimize
emissions, thus reduce the impact on the environment.
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Motor vehicles

During the Reporting Period, we owned a fleet of 20-23 vehicles for
transporting our management team members, guests and clients, as
well as for our business operations that would consume a considerable
amount of fuel.

At the end of each month, we would obtain a summary of fuel
consumption from our service provider in order to monitor the usage
of fuel of all our vehicles. Furthermore, regular maintenance checks are
performed for all the vehicles to enhance fuel consumption efficiency,
to ensure road safety and to keep carbon dioxide emission at their
minimum.

The total mileage travelled of the vehicles was approximately 324,592
kilometers. The total fuel consumption of the vehicles was approximately
138,173 liters; the total nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides emissions
were approximately 1,416,462 grams and approximately 2,034 grams
respectively; while the total particle emission was approximately 107,102
grams; and the total carbon dioxide emission was approximately 326,562
kilograms.

Air-conditioning

Employees are encouraged to set the offices’ air-conditioners at a
comfortable temperature (best at 25.5 degrees Celsius) and all the air-
conditioners that are not in use should be switched off. The Group
has also put reminder notices at prominent places to raise employees’
awareness of electricity consumption and energy conservation.

Travelling by air

During the Reporting Period, the total number of business air trips
by the employees was 13 times and the total CO2 emissions were
approximately 2,610 kilograms. Employees are only required to travel
by air when necessary, otherwise, we would arrange telephone or video
conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings to reduce the carbon
emissions that are indirectly caused by air travel.
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Data on Greenhouse Gas Emission
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R RN EIR

Carbon emission (CO,) in kg

Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-—E-_ZEFE A A=1+HLEE T =t EREREEk (&b ix)
Motor vehicles JRE 326,562
Disposal of paper FRIBAR R 12,771
Business travel by air M ZE IR T 2,610
Total emission of GHG BER AN 341,943

Use of Resources

We always endeavor to promote sustainability and aim to cease
resources wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the environment.
Various measures have been implemented to attain the goal of
using resources efficiently. These measures have been effectively
communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring all staff members understand
clearly the importance of conserving energy and make full use of the
available resources at work.

Based on our operating model of the environmental and cleaning
business, most of our water, electricity and energy consumption
is directly provided by our customers or publicly sourced by the
government and such consumption quantity is not controllable by us.
Nevertheless, the Group has formulated policies and educated the
employees on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and
other raw materials in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
Internal environmental review has been conducted regularly to assess the
environmental impact of the group business activities so that the energy
and water usage can be closely monitored. Measures that have been
taken to minimize the usage of resources are detailed below.

Water Usage

We encourage our employees working in the headquarters to consume
resources only where appropriate, and turn off the faucets tightly. We
also fix dripping taps immediately, and install flow restrictors and spray
nozzles where possible.
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Our on-site employees are required to follow a standard water pollution
control procedure in order to reduce water pollution. Wastewater
containing bleach, buffering cream or specific detergent is diluted before
it is discharged into sewers. To enhance our employees’ knowledge of
wastewater discharge, relevant ordinances and environmental measures
are introduced to our employees.

As the water bills for our head office in Hong Kong are included in the
estate maintenance fee and we are not able to record the water usage
on sites, thus we are not able to collect and disclose the relevant data.

Electricity and Energy Usage

In consideration of the potential environmental threats to the
communities, the Group has made steady progress in reducing its
carbon footprints across the business. As the electricity bills for our Hong
Kong head office are included in the estate maintenance fee, thus we are
not able to collect and disclose the relevant data. Nevertheless, as part
of our many initiatives to reduce energy consumption, we have adopted
and implemented the following measures to preserve energy and reduce
electricity usage:

e Turn off lighting and appliances that are not in use to reduce energy
consumption;

e Turn off air conditioners and lights during non-office hours and in
idle rooms;

° Employees are required to put computers and other devices into
sleeping mode or turn them off when they are not in use (such as
during customer visit and lunch time) during business hours;

° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air conditioners,
computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure they are operating
efficiently;

e  Printing machine in the office is set at energy-saving mode by
default, and the sleeping mode is automatically turned on, when not
in use for a certain time interval;

° Used printer cartridges at the head office are sent back to the
manufacturers for recycling; and

e Place posters “Saving Electricity; Turn off the Light when Leaving”

at prominent places to encourage employees to reduce energy
consumption.
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Generation of Waste

Solid waste is mainly generated from the Group’s day-to-day operations,
including, but not limited to office-use paper, office waste and waste
generated from the provision of our cleaning service. In order to alleviate
the pressure on landfills and promote environmental friendliness within
the Group, we have implemented various measures to encourage
recycling of office supplies and other materials.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited
to the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed material
non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by us.

We have a comprehensive guideline on procurement of detergents,
pesticides and other products related to our business. Only a minimal
amount of chemical or clinical hazardous waste was generated during the
performance of our service, therefore, the data of hazardous waste was
not included in the calculation. Moreover, no packing materials were used
for the business operations, and thus, no data in this respect is available.

Total non-hazardous waste generated for the year ended 30 June
2020
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Data (kg)
HE(TR)
Paper #aR 2,661
Towels £ 2,155
Gloves FE 2,073
Scouring cloth B 279
Total weight HEE 7,168
Reduction of printing and paper usage DT EIRG ALk (E 5
We require our staff members to make full use of office paper before  FH{FIEsk 8 TEEIE A B4 BIANAZD F

its disposal and have incorporated various measures into our business
operations. For example, we implement the policy of double-sided
printing and copying, and disseminate information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper. We encourage
our employees to avoid the use of disposable and non-recyclable
products, and to use refillable stationeries instead of one-off stationeries.
Recycling bins are also available to collect used products, such as waste
papers and cartridges toners, at the headquarters. We will continue to
leverage the use of technology for communication with our employees
and customers, aiming to go paperless.
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Reduction of waste generated from the provision of our services

Our employees are encouraged to organize, maintain and clean the
garbage and recycled waste holding areas; recycled waste is sorted
into appropriate receptacles. Appropriate signage is placed on the bins,
stating what type of waste or recyclables should be put in the bin.

Moreover, our Group policy requires employees to bring back all the
bottles provided them. If cleaning chemicals have been used up,
employees are not allowed to dispose of the empty bottles that keep
the cleaning chemicals without proper consent. Empty bottles must be
collected and refilled with cleaning chemicals for reuse.

SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

We value our employees and focus on building a safe and pleasant
working environment for them. We offer attractive remuneration packages
as well as provide plenty of internal and external training opportunities for
our employees, in order to attract, motivate and retain the right people.

Before the start of employment, employees are required to enter into an
employment contract, where the duties and responsibilities of his or her
role are clearly stated. Moreover, we have a set of personnel policies
and procedures as well as a staff handbook that set out our standard
internal procedures relating to recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, compensation, dismissal, diversity
of origins, anti-discrimination and other human resources treatments and
benefits of our employees, etc. The relevant policies for employment and
labour practices are listed as follows.

Compliance

We strictly comply with the requirements of the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, the Labour Law and the Social Security Law as well as other
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC which cover
employment protection and benefits. During the Reporting Period, we
complied with all laws and regulations in relation to employment that
have a significant impact on us. No confirmed significant non-compliance
incidents were noted by the Group.
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Employment EE

Employees are valuable assets to the Group and the key driving force EERAEENEEEE » MARMAHEE
of our sustainable performance. We welcome people with different E&FZEEFH S - ZFFIEDEETRESHA
backgrounds to join our team to add value to our pool of professional A A1 A F A B Bx - Z%ﬁzﬁﬁ%ﬁ’liifﬂéﬁz@
expertise of the industry and bring in innovative ideas. As of 30 June &{H @ MEHWAIFES - HE2 T -F E
2020, the Group employed a total of 1,240 members of staff in NA=1+H  AEEBEESELTRERA K
Hong Kong and the PRC, consists of 907 full-time and 333 part-time  1,240% &8 - 8459075 2 8 & 333 % 3 i &

employees. 8-
The following table sets forth the breakdowns by gender, age group and TR EHIWIAR - ZE—hAhEA=+HKEE MK
region of our employees as at 30 June 2019: Bl - FHR ?HE'J)SU@IEQ‘J 5 HYERAR

Male Female Total
Age Group FEe ARl M feg i st
18-25 182 255% 8 3 11
26 -35 262 355% 22 27 49
36 — 45 362 455% 61 99 160
46 - 55 46E555% 80 272 352
56 - 65 56ZE655% 97 365 462
Above 65 B55% A 73 133 206
Total F 341 899 1,240

Total workforce by geographical region

RBESNETRHY

6.1%

PRC
3l

M Hong Kong
B

During the Reporting Period, a total of 636 members of staff were HRMEHR - EEBERPE - £5636%EE
dismissed or resigned from their positions in Hong Kong and the PRC. ﬁﬁﬂ@‘kﬁﬂiﬁi\ﬂﬁku ° EE\J/w%TE’J%’fﬁ?ﬂ(F

The statistics for employee turnover rates are as follows. [FUmN
Employee turnover rate by age group Employee turnover rate by gender
RFRERNETHEERAE RUERIE D NEERAER
o 18-25
14.9% 5.3% 18%255%
26-35
2357 [
127% m 879
36Z455%
W 46-55 .
467555
W 56-65 gﬁ‘;
[o} =655
31.3% 292% m 2?)0\255;@ M Female
655%A ziE
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Anti-discrimination and integrity

The Group strives to create a fair and impartial working environment
where all employees are treated equally and respectfully. Any kinds of
discrimination or harassment based on the employees’ gender, age,
marital status, race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace are
strongly prohibited. Employees are entitled to equal opportunity in terms
of treatment and promotion. A set of policies and procedures is in place
detailing the aim, complaint procedure, and appeal procedure on equal
opportunities. During the recruitment process, we only focus on the
capability and attitude of the interviewee, thus people with disabilities are
also welcome to be part of our Group.

We always listen and respond to the requests of our employees. It is the
goal of the Group to create a friendly and peaceful working environment.
We encourage our employees to provide feedback in relation to
any employment-related matters, especially when they encounter
any unpleasant or undesired treatments from colleagues or senior
management. Employees may report issues to his or her department
head and lodge a formal complaint. Any complaints received will be kept
confidential. If any unfair treatments and harassments are found and
confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in written form to the employee
who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss him or her depending on
the seriousness of the incident.

By adopting the above practices, we comply with, in all material respects,
the corresponding ordinances and its respective codes of practices,
which includes the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487), Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 527), and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602)
supported by the Hong Kong equal Opportunities Commission (“EOC”).

Attract and retain talents

Our employees are our most valuable asset and we value their rights
and welfare. Our remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of the competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees. Management
has been constantly reviewing the staff remuneration package and
employees’ promotion opportunities. Adjustments will be made
periodically, to conform with the market standard in order to retain talents
and ensure the offer is competitive as compared to our competitors in
the industry. A standard package includes basic salary and the statutory
pension benefit such as the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) in Hong
Kong, the social insurance and housing provident fund in the PRC. We
also offer discretionary bonus based on the individual performance of the
employees and our financial performance.
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Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various welfare
and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees are entitled
to all public holidays as well as paid leave in accordance with the
Employment Ordinance and their job level. Long service award is offered
as an appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long-serving
employees. In addition, we offer discounted dental care plan to our
employees, which their spouse and children can also enjoy.

We emphasize the unity and harmony at work. Over the years, our
Human Resources Department has made efforts in organizing activities
to strengthen the bonding of employees within the Group. Annual dinner
and casual gatherings were organized this year, which provide a platform
for our employees to mingle and have fun.

Health and Safety

We aim to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. Our safety management system which is
formulated based on the requirements of the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong is accredited to the leading
international standard of ISO 45001.

To ensure all accidents and injuries are properly recorded, and are
handled accordingly by the relevant employees, The Group has a
comprehensive policy for accidents reporting procedures. During the
Reporting Period, there were a total of 42 cases of work-related injuries
and a total of 1,675 lost days due to work injury; no record of work-
related fatality was recorded. Since the provision of our services may
expose our employees to a certain degree of occupational hazards, all
work-related health and safety performance, including work procedures,
working at height, occupational road risk, and machinery safety, are
closely monitored by the Operation and Administrative Department of the
Group.

Employees are required to receive training on how to use relevant
machines, tools and materials and must be well equipped before they
provide services to our clients. Supervisors are assigned to take the
responsibility of overseeing the operations, make immediate responses,
and notify the management if the hazards in the workplace are noted.
Furthermore, we conduct periodic risk assessment in order to timely
identify, evacuate and mitigate any new risks from workplace and
to ultimately provide our employees with a healthy and safe working
environment.

Employees are also required to familiarize themselves with and follow
our “Occupational Health and Safety Plan”, which details the safety
requirements when performing services. For instance, the use of personal
protective equipment such as proper gloves, safety goggles, masks, use
of appropriate tools for picking up garbage, proper use of chemicals as
per standards etc., to reduce the risk of accidental injuries.
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Safety rules are translated into various languages to cater for the
different needs of our employees. The Operation and Administrative
Department provides updates on health and safety issues to the staff
members on a regular basis. The Group has incorporated safety
management awareness into every stage of our operations. Our safety
culture and policies are also introduced to our contractors and partners
by incorporating safety requirements into the terms of the service
agreements.

Development and Training

We believe that investing in employees through training will help
promote job satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. Different
types of training are provided to employees to make sure that they
are acknowledged with updated information and possess sufficient
knowledge and skills to provide quality services to our customers. For
instance, training includes but is not limited to driving safety, business
writing, operational training, orientation, as well as information technology
security.

The total number of training hours for the Reporting Period was
approximately 25,312 hours. The average number of training hours
completed by each male and female employee were approximately
23 hours and approximately 15 hours respectively. The percentage of
employees trained by gender is as below:
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Continuous education enhances the competitiveness of the employees
as well as the Group in the industry. The Group is committed to providing
our employees resources and opportunities, so that they can have clear
career goals to progress within the Group.
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Labour Standards

We are committed to complying with the Employment Ordinance and
other relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC in relation
to employees’ protection and benefits. Every employment is subject
to a stringent internal review process that involves a well-established
procedure to verify a candidate’s personal information, in order to avoid
misrepresentation and employment of child labour. For instance, the
staff member responsible for recruitment collects the identity proofs
from the candidates to ensure that the age of the candidates fulfill the
requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited. If
management discovers there is any employment of forced or child
labour, we will immediately terminate the employment concerned. During
the Reporting Period, all employees are over the age of 18, and have
been properly employed in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable laws and regulations. No confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances were noted by the Group.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group places emphasis on supply chain management, which
is achieved by maintaining long-term relationships with credible and
reputable suppliers that offer quality products and services. Environmental
and social factors are taken into considerations when choosing our
suppliers. Suppliers with certain qualifications, such as certification of
ISO 14001 or ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification or
ISO 45001 or other accreditation, etc. will be given preference.

In addition to the quality of product or service, the suppliers’
environmental value and awareness of occupational health and safety
are considered during supplier selection. We have a guideline on
procurement of detergents, pesticides and other work-related materials,
and set out clear considerable factors when choosing suppliers’
products.

We continuously evaluate the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors in
respect to products supplied, service quality, reliability, environmental
performance and occupational health and safety. We also consider
the principle of green procurement and constantly evaluate the use of
materials to avoid overstocking and squandering resources.

[t is our wish to collaborate with our suppliers in the development
and application of innovation, participation in production process
enhancement for the continuous optimization of supply chain capabilities
as well as fulfilment of our responsibilities in social and environmental
protection.
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Product Responsibility

At the Group, our primary focus is to provide high quality services to our
customers. We value the importance of confidentiality of our customers
by protecting their personal information. For advertising, we strictly
comply with all relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and in the
PRC to avoid conveying any incorrect messages to the public.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations, and no complaints were received in relation to our services
provided. No non-compliance issues or grievances were noted by the
Group.

Customer Management

For the environmental protection business, the Group places great
emphasis on quality control. We have obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001
and I1SO 45001, and are committed to delivering professional services
and achieving customer satisfaction. To understand clients’ needs, we
conduct site assessments and communicate with our clients before
commencing services.

We have a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality
Management Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and
objectives. During the performance of our services, our employees will
carry out regular check on the service quality, including services delivered
by the Group’s own employees and third-party service providers, and
record occasions of substandard performance and any follow-up actions
taken.

Moreover, management members would hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review and discuss various aspects of operations
to ensure that the services provided meet clients’ expectations. We
continuously collect feedback from clients about service quality,
environmental and workplace safety performance, and application of
material and tools. To enhance clients’ confidence in the Group, we
promptly investigate the root cause of unsatisfying services, provide
corrective solutions and carry out immediate remedial and preventive
actions in response to the complaints received from our clients.

For the money lending business, we provide one-on-one service to our
customers and design loan repayment schedule which best suits the
needs of our customers. Service features, terms and conditions, and any
associated risks are clearly communicated to the intending borrowers
by the Group’s employees. We understand that good customer service
is essential in maintaining long-term relationships with our customers.
The mission of our customer service emphasizes the provision of quality
services, effective communication and responsive solution. The interests
of our customers are placed at top priority.
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Business Ethics

In order to build customer trust and loyalty, we have set out rules
to reduce the risk of employees leaking confidential information. For
instance, every employee is required to enter into a confidentiality
agreement which forbids him/her to disclose confidential or proprietary
information to parties outside the Group, either during or after
employment, without the Group’s authorization.

The confidentiality agreement specifies the content and scope of
confidentiality, obligations of the employees, and liability for the breach
of agreement. Disclosing or copying any of the Group’s trade secret
without the consent from management is strictly prohibited. If there are
any employees discovered of misappropriating customers’ private data,
the Group will dismiss the employees concerned and reserve the right to
legal proceedings.

We endeavor to protect the information system, prevent virus attack and
the leakage of clients’ information. Training relating to cyber security and
relevant risk management is provided to our employees to enhance the
employees’ awareness of cyber security.

Since our employees have access to personal data of the customers,
it is important for us to ensure the privacy of customers’ information.
The Group continues to monitor, review and, when necessary,
update its privacy principles and policies to ensure they are complying
with all relevant laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group complied with all relevant law and regulations in relation
to data protection, including but not limited to the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (“PDPQ”) and Intellectual Property (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-compliance
incidents or grievances were noted by the Group.

Advertising

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but
not limited to the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, which
constitutes a significant influence to the Group’s business.

The Group strictly complies with the advertising requirements. All kinds
of advertisements, such as leaflet or websites, are carefully drafted and
avoiding the use of false descriptions to mislead customers. All final drafts
of the advertisement must be approved by our management before bulk
printing.
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Moreover, we have designated employees to monitor notices, news
and information in the media in connection with tenders relating to
environmental hygiene services and airline catering support services
works to ensure that we strictly comply with local laws and regulations
regarding advertising and labelling.

During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.

Trademark Management

We have registered trademarks which are important to our business. We
regularly monitor whether our trademarks are being infringed. We are
committed to protecting intellectual property rights which we handle with
great care during our daily operations.

Anti-corruption

We clearly understand that financial crime can have significant
consequences to our customers and us. Moreover, the community and
the economies in which we operate in can also be greatly impacted.
Therefore, we are committed to making efforts to address the issues of
corruption, bribery and money laundering.

We maintain and implement our own anti-bribery, anti-corruption and
anti-fraud practices and procedures. We do not support, nor tolerate,
any corrupt practices and making or receiving of bribery payments. We
have established a clear policy to guide our employees in this regard. In
addition, the employment contracts of our employees include the code
of conduct for them to follow. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity and self-discipline, and they should abstain from
engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering activities or
any activities which might exploit the Group’s or client’s interests.

Directors of the Company should declare in writing for any business
which he/she has any direct or indirect financial interest in, which
competes with the Group or the Group has business dealings with. The
Group will take disciplinary action against the employees who breach the
rules. The employees may also be subject to termination of employment.
Where criminality is suspected, a report will be made to the relevant
regulators or law enforcement authorities if necessary.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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Whistle-blowers can report verbally or in writing to immediate supervisor
or Audit Committee members for any suspicious activities, including any
request, receipt or acceptance of any forms of benefits from any persons,
companies or organizations that may cause conflict of interest with the
Group, and misconducts which are related to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money-laundering. The whistle-blower’s identity remains anonymous
and is protected throughout the investigation; the whistle-blower should
also not be placed into any disadvantaged position in relation to the
employment.

In particular to our money lending business, we perform due diligence
and Know-Your-Customer procedures on all customers before accepting
loan applications. Documents, including ID/passport, address proof,
etc., will be obtained before entering into business relationships with
our customers. The Group strictly follows the Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing guideline issued by the Hong Kong
S.A.R. Licensed Money Lenders Association Limited to ascertain the
background of the customers, to identify suspicious money-laundering
behaviours, and to report any suspicious transactions. Under the
current practice, when it comes to the attention of the employees that a
customer may be involved in any money laundering activities, the case
will be reported to a member of senior management who will then decide
whether it should be reported to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited
to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. There was no
corruption or bribery incident reported within the Group.

Community Investment

The Group believes that corporate social responsibility is the backbone
of corporate values, and continues to dedicate time and effort to give
back to the local community. For the ten consecutive years, we have
been named a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in recognition of our contributions to support community building,
environmental conservation, and people development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group supported several charities, such
as Fu Hong Society and Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong by making
donations. Furthermore, our employees actively participate in community
services, growing a corporate culture of caring and respect. Our social
commitment and efforts made do not only help to make a difference to
the people in need, but also that also help to foster care and harmony
within the community.
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HKEX’S GUIDE TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREXZERE - 4 ERERHEES

Disclosed in this

Aspects/General disclosures/Description ESG Report Remarks
EREE - HERER

BE—REE it HEFNREVE Bt

A. Environmental

A B

Aspect A1: Emission

HAT - e

General Disclosure Environmental — Overview,

Information on: Emissions

(@ The policies; and RIE-E -

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on
the issuer

—MRIRER

B :

@ E%E: K

(b) ETHEITABEAZENEBERERA

BER

Al The types of emissions and respective Emissions
emissions data e
PERU TR AR BE R EUR
Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Emissions — Data on
AERERENE Greenhouse Gas Emission
BER) — B Rm = RS HE
MEEIR
A1.3 | Total hazardous waste produced Generation of Waste As the chemical or clinical hazardous
FIELBEEREYES EEEEY waste generated from the operations
is minimal and immaterial, thus we
did not record the relevant data in the
Reporting Period.
MR EEPE £ A B ERRE =R
ZYRD - WO REHRRNBFII R
SRR -
A1.4 | Total non-hazardous waste produced Generation of Waste
FELBREREEYRE EEREEY)
A1.5 | Description of measures to mitigate Emissions
emissions and results achieved PEn)
HIURE BN E N R FTISRR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Generation of Waste
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction | EAREZEY
initiatives and results achieved
HEIEEERBEEEMNTE R
1R & S VR e R PSR R
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE, —RIRE

Disclosed in this
ESG Report

EARRE  #HERER
BEPHEEVE

Remarks

e

Aspect A2: Use of resources

HA2 : BIRER

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials.
— MR

BRERER(BIERR - KEEMEMR) KR
% o

Use of Resources

BRER

A21 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources
consumption by type in total ER{E A
RS DM ERE RS EE e RERE
s
A2.2 | Water consumption in total and intensity | Use of Resources — Water As the water bills for our head office in
RIFEKENEE Usage Hong Kong are included in the estate
BIRE A — FK maintenance fee and we are not able
to record the water usage on sites,
thus we are not able to collect and
disclose the relevant data.
HREME B LMK ET A RAE
HER  HPEERISLEAKE -
U P A SR R AR BR AR R B -
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Use of Resources — As the electricity bills for our Hong
initiatives and results achieved Electricity and Energy Kong head office are included in the
L RE IR (E s s T B8I  FTS A R Usage estate maintenance fee, thus we are
BREA-FEH KRR not able to collect and disclose the
b relevant data.
HRBEMEBRINEET AMEE
B BRMEERE R ERE
HE o
A2.4 | Description of whether there is any issue | Use of Resources — Water
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Usage
water efficiency initiatives and results BEIRE R — AKX
achieved
FCSKEGE R KR SR B EARERE - A
R TR a5t 8l R PSR
A2.5 | Total packaging material used for Not applicable As we provide cleaning services and
finished products TEA financing services, the Group does
R MATABEMENRAS not produce any tangible products
that require packaging.
MR MHREUEZ RS KR E R -
MASEEN T EEETARERENE
WER-
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Disclosed in this

resources and actions taken to manage
them

RR SRS EIRIRERARARE IR EKXR
SELEHNEEEEYENTH

Aspects/General disclosures/Description ESG Report Remarks
EARE  HERER
BE—REE BEFHRENVE B
Aspect A3: The environmental and natural resources
[EBHEAS : IREBRRKAEIR
General Disclosure Environmental
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant RIR
impact on the environment and natural resources.
—RRIRER
KT ABBRIE R AR EREXNERZENK
% o
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Environmental
activities on the environment and natural | ¥i%

B. Social
B. &

Aspect B1: Employment
EMEB1 : (Ef#

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

Relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—RRIRER

BRAH I AR E - IS RET - TSR - &

B FE#e - 2ok REGUAREMFER

B

@ BEK: &

(o) ETFTHBEITABEAZENEBERRARD

AR

Employment and Labour
Practices
BRENBIER

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region
RIER - EEEE - Fhedn KRS
bal: ol 3= FEE

Employment

(A

B1.2 | Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region

RMER - AR RMESSIES R
ENERS

Employment

(A
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE, —RIRE

Disclosed in this
ESG Report

EARRE  #HERER
BEPHEEVE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EmB2 - ZFET s

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on
the issuer

Relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

—ARIRER

EHAREZ2 TIERERREREERABENSE

FH) -

Health and Safety
e S

@ Xk

(b) BEFHBITABEAZEEEEERAD

B &K}

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and Safety

fatalities
AT ERE ML T A B L

fERERZ 2

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Health and Safety
RITEBEEXTIEEHE i R L 27

B2.3 | Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
safety measures adopted, how they are | f@FEEZ 2

implemented and monitored
R PR AN B R 2 R B R 2 18 B
NABRARIT R ERTA

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EHBS3 - # & &IEd

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

— MR
BHRAEE BT IR E B R A
5 o HIETIES) o

Development and Training
R NIEH

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by | Development and Training Only the percentage of employees
gender and employee category BRI trained by gender is disclosed.
rUERIREERANESOXIIEER D EERERMNESNZIIEER D
tt Ltk e

B3.2 | The average training hours completed Development and Training Only the average training hours
per employee by gender and employee RN completed per employee by gender is
category disclosed.

R REERRED - B5ES T EORERERE S NEREETK

Gl RSy 2t

o)l TR o
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE/ —RIKE

Disclosed in this
ESG Report

ERRE  #HERER
BEPHEEVE

Remarks

i

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EEB4 : 4 TEA

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on
the issuer

Relating to preventing child and forced labour

—RRIRER

BREAPIEET 3584 A -

@ BE: &

b) BETFHEITABEARTENRBERE KRN

BB R}

Labour Standards
8 TR

B4.1 Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

faiina R E DI AR R E T K
58 |85 T

Labour Standards
4 T8

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered

R IR B RGN ER B BB
FRERH) P57

Labour Standards
LT

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : fREEEIE

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain

—MRIKER

EIRHEEHIRIR Rt @ RBRER

Supply Chain Management
g e

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region

iR B R R EE

Not disclosed

AEBER

B5.2 | Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored

R A AR AHEERNIED - mERT
BB HEREE - ARERIED
BT REE R A

Supply Chain Management
HpEEE R
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE, —RIRE

Disclosed in this
ESG Report

EARRE -
BEPHEEVE

HERESR

Remarks

e

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEB6 : EmET

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress

—RIKE

%ﬁFﬁﬁﬁ%zﬁiéﬁuufﬂﬁ&fkﬂﬁﬁ_ﬁfﬁﬂif CEE R
BRABEEARERA AR

@ Xk

(b) BTHBEITABEAFZEMNHEEEELRL

K& R

Product Responsibility
EmET

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons
EENDERER
BHRMARKKNE D

m%¢l§ {2

Not applicable
ANiE A

As we provide cleaning services and
financing services, we do not have
any physical products to sell.

R MRHE IR kR &R -
AP A A R E R B RS E

O
on °

B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with

BN A o B RIS RO BR B LA KB
A

Product Responsibility
EmET

B6.3 | Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

Fi it B A o S ARFR AN EE RE R ARV D)

Product Responsibility
Emaft

B6.4 | Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures
il E R E B REMBIKEF

Not applicable
i

As we provide cleaning services and
financing services, we do not have
any physical products to sell.

B BAPIHRAUBRIR N B & RS -
RPN AT R B R BB E

[}
on °

B6.5 | Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored
RMUEEEERRE RALRBOR - A&
AT REER A

Product Responsibility
EmEE
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE/ —RIKE

Disclosed in this
ESG Report

ERRE  #HERER
BEPHEEVE

Remarks

i

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer
Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering
—RRIRER
BN IEARRE - BR - BGFRERER -
@ BE: &

b) ETFHETABEAZENHEBERIAM
ME R

Anti-Corruption
RESF

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
RRERAEBTASHESRDETE
BHEMNESFARGOE B RFALE

Anti-Corruption
REE

B7.2 | Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

Rt 15 b MEBRRAR T - A SRABRREEL
TRERTE

Anti-Corruption
REF

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[BEBS : it RIHE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests

— MR

BRI B 2R T R @A R R EMEER
HEEBRSEZ R RN GSABER

Community Investment
HRIRE

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community Investment
I ER SR HERIRE

B8.2 | Resources contributed to the focus area | Community Investment
EEISRMBAER HERKEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHARE

@ pakerti lly

N
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PPS INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 191, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

FRENEE

RERMNEXRAE - TEFAFFE/RFY
ARG EMBRREAREZNER - X5 H
HARERMBGEEPWHRRETEANVEBER
MTRE - WHEFSEER - MERFAL X
FERBUEHER -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit FTEEHEE RPEEETEENA T
Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables EWEFEFENEEREE

Refer to notes 2.10(), 2.12, 16 and 29(a) of the consolidated financial statements EREAHBFENZ2100 - 212 16829

The Group recognised loans and interest  Our audit procedures in this area included: SEENGARERE BT AENEHEFEE
receivables recorded initially at fair value HEANFUATE

and subsequently at amortised cost in the ¢ obtaining and reviewing the sample of 318 [ BE 16 H i § AR ERLREETRENE
consolidated statement of financial position. loan agreements (including supplemental it & 7 fE W & 7 K& F (PHRERGZREHETD

As at 30 June 2020, the carrying amount of
the loans receivable and interest receivables
were HK$66,449,000 and HK$1,231,000
respectively.

The measurement of expected credit losses
(‘ECL”) requires the application of significant
judgements which include the identification
of exposures with a significant deterioration
in credit quality, and assumptions used in the
ECL model such as the probabilities of defaultt,
loss given default, expected future cash flows
and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of the aggregated
amount of loans and interest receivables
(representing approximately 26% of total
assets) and inherent uncertainty in such
estimates, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the
principal amounts, interest rates, maturity
dates and other information to the
Group's accounting records;

testing controls designed and applied
in the process of approving and
granting loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan
extensions;

assessing the effectiveness of key controls
over the application of the impairment
methodology, the governance for the ECL
models, inputs and assumptions used by
the Group in calculating the ECL;

assessing the reasonableness of the
Group’s ECL models and the Group’s
criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be
measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment;

recalculation of loan interest income
recognised;

obtaining direct confirmation of loan
balances from the borrowers; and

reviewing subsequent settlement records
and corroborating enquiries with the
management about reasons for not
considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHARE
OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

V N
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 September 2020
Tong Wai Hang

Practising certificate number PO6231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEER

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HZ - L -ZFF A =+HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7 7T31)7R )

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
(Note)
(BfF3E)
Revenue & 3
— Service income from environmental —IRBRER 2 BRIEWA
and cleaning 328,675 292,389
— Interest income from money lending —IEER 2 M EWA 16,711 23,697
345,386 316,086
Cost of services R A AR (306,733) (264,298)
Gross profit EF 38,653 51,788
Other income, other gains and HABYA « EAbYEs R HAb
other losses and impairments BB A MRE 4 (45,343) 187
Selling and marketing expenses HE R EHERY (2,889) (4,055)
Administrative expenses TE R (22,259) (22,326)
Finance costs b E R 5(a) (1,469) (1,887)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (B 1R) R 5 (33,307) 23,707
Income tax expense FriSEif 6 (2,510) (4,254)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)R=F (35,817) 19,453
Attributable to: AT AL FEG
— owners of the Company — AR EHEBA (36,719) 18,477
— non-controlling interests — JEIE i A 902 976
(35,817) 19,453
HK cents HK cents
AL il
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(ER) BR 9
— Basic and diluted —HARREE (6.80) 3.44

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not
restated. See note 2.3.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEREREMEEKRER e wase m i oo s (AAFEFI)

2020 2019
—EBCEF —E—NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE FET FHET
(Note)
(MF5E)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),ER (35,817) 19,453
Other comprehensive loss, HM2mEEE - {IBREHE
net of nil tax
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently E&AIgeEFH D IEEIBE 218
to profit or loss: B
- Exchange differences on translation —MREBIINEBMBRER ZER
of financial statements of foreign ZH
operations (318) (280)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income ERZEUGE) WHAHE

for the year (36,135) 19,173
Attributable to: T AL :
— owners of the Company —RRBHEB A (37,037) 18,197
- non-controlling interests — IR 902 976

(36,135) 19,173

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using the modified ~ M3t : AEBER T —NEFELA—BEREE]

retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not BWEEREREEMEREERE165 o
restated. See note 2.3. BIEZ A% WBRARTTEY - R
2.3°

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  F&RTHT sE A It S 47 A B A RER N — 25 °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
’ﬁ‘ﬂa‘% Eji%ﬂﬁiﬂr% As at 30 June 2020 R ZE=E&FXF=+H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7 T31)7R )

2020 2019
bl 323 —E-nE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M FEx FET
(Note)
CGE)
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE R 10 59,011 4774
Right-of-use assets ERERE 11 1,226 -
Intangible assets BV EE 12 = -
Goodwill PEES 13 2,932 2,932
Restricted bank deposits ZRBRITER 17 1,244 8,634
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant ~ BEEYE - MERZEDH1ES
and equipment 16,310
64,413 32,650
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 502 670
Trade receivables B SN FIA 14 53,479 57,364
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 124 - BB & H A0 fEU 0B 15 9,128 4,399
Loans and interest receivables EWE TR FIE 16 67,680 124,557
Restricted bank deposits IRFIRITER 17 4,043 6,235
Cash and cash equivalents Be B eEED 17 65,485 53,809
Current tax recoverable AJ U el BN ERFR T8 25(a) 631 740
200,948 247,774
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables 2 SRR 18 15,496 14,198
Accruals, deposits received and other payables JESTE R - B Wig s & H e
HIE 19 31,295 32,174
Bank loans RITER 21 23,401 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 22 1,258 -
Obligation under a finance lease AT E AL 23 - 51
Current tax payable BIEARERI 71 25(a) 2,999 7,129
74,449 53,552
Net current assets REBEETFE 126,499 194,222
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDER 190,912 226,872
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Bond E% 24 9,798 9,669
Deferred tax liabilities REFIABE 25(p) 919 873
10,717 10,542
NET ASSETS BEFE 180,195 216,330
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AL R As at 30 June 2020 R=E=FFXA=1H
1?5{ = | /E\ZI-i%Hk /R% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
2020 2019
it St 33 —TNF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BisE TR THET
(Note)
()
Capital and reserves BEXRR S 28
Share capital B 28(a) 5,400 5,400
Reserves s 172,882 209,919
Total equity attributable to owners KATEEAELEREARE
of the Company 178,282 215,319
Non-controlling interests FEIERRE RS 1,913 1,011
TOTAL EQUITY EEAE 180,195 216,330

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using the modified Mzt - ZEEER T —NFL A —HEHLER

retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not BWEERERBRBYBHRELRE 169K
restated. See note 2.3. BIEZ A% WBRARTTEY - R
2.3°

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 RIZZEZZEFNAZFTNALKESTSHERE

September 2020. RETI)EE o
Yu Shaoheng Lai Tin Ming RAET - PR
Director Director EE EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEFIFIFHIER I F47E B MF A —FB 5 ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

e St ¥ = =]
ISy TOES
Attributable to owners of the Company
LN PN A

Convertible Non-

Share Share Other  Contrboution bonds  Exchange Accumuated controling
Notes ~ captd  premium  reseve  suplus  reserve  reserve losses Totd  interests Total

i R

it BE BOEE HEbRE 4ARR  BHRE  ENRE 2R a5t s it
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr fExr TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEr  TEr  TEr TiEx
Mote28  (ote28  (ote28  (ote28  (note 28
(b)) o) i) (o) (b))
(Wi (stos (Wi (Mis  (MMif2s
o)) (0 A7) N )

At1July 2018 R=8-Nfth-A 2,700 154,500 1000 21,400 6,129 (226 (35106) 150,398 3% 150,438

Changes in equity for 2019: W=B-hEEHEH:

Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - 14T 18417 o6 19453
Exchenge differenceson A EINEBHHRE L

{ranslation of financil BEREE  HRTHE

statements of foreign

operations, net of nil tax - - - _

(280) - -

Total comprehensive (oss)/  ERZTE(EE),/ Mz
income for the year 2% - - - -

(280 18477 18197 976 19,178

lssue of share pursuant to -~ IRIEHEAREATRA

the rights issue 28(a)fi) 2,700 45,900 - - - - - 48600 - 48,600
Transactioncostsforthe ~— ER A
rights issue 28(a)(i) - (1,876) - - - - - (1,876) - (1876)
Release upon redemption o~ REE TR EAEER
convertile bonds 20 - - - - (6,129 - 6,129 - - -
2,700 44,024 - - 6,129) (280) 24,606 64,921 976 65,897
At 30 June 2019 RZE-AERB=TH 5400 198,524 1,000 21,400 - (B05) (105000 215319 1,011 216,330
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
%ég%ﬁ % E % For the year ended 30 June 2020 HZ - - F A=+ HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

Attributable to owners of the Company

b ONGE 2PN Non-

Share Share Other Contribution Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  losses Total interests Total

FER

kx  REEE HibRE SARE EXRE ZHER &t B h
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$000
Tér TRr TR TER  THER TR TR TR TEx

(note28  (note28  (note28  (note 28

o b)) ()

(HfsE (Host (Hys (His

B8b)i)  28(0)fi))  28(b)ii)  28(b)(v))

At 1 July 2019 RZB-hELA-H 198,524 21,400 (10,500) 215,319 216,330

Changes in equity for 2020; RZS-EEREEE

(Loss)/proft for the year Fm(EiR) /&7 (36,719)  (36,719) (35,817)
Exchange differences on transiaion 1 Z BN EBEIBER ZER
offnancial statements of freign~~~ £8 IHTHE

operations, net of il tax (318) (318) (318)
Total comprehensive oss)income R (FE) /W LE

for the year (318)  (36,719)  (37,037) 902 (36,139
At 30 June 2020 R-BZEERA=TA 198,524 1,000 (823)  (47,219) 178,282 1913 180,195

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEMIFI B I SR A SRR —3 0 °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

& A =] For the year ended 30 June 2020 BZ = ZE -TFXA=1+HILFE
= }E,$)j|[, E% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TR )

2020 2019
—ECEH —T-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E TR T
(Note)
(M)
Operating activities RETER
(Loss)/profit before taxation: BrBIAT(E51R),m A - (33,307) 23,707
Adjustments for: FAEATEIE
- Interest income from money lending —EEBZFBUWA 3 (16,711) (23,697)
- Bank interest income —SRITFISWA 4 (161) (116)
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and —DEME - BERRERE
equipment, net FER 4 (230) -
— Impairment loss on loans and interest — U E N F B E R R
receivables 4 37,389 -
— Revaluation loss on property, plant and - - BERRBEGES
equipment 4 13,213 -
— Finance costs —BhE R 5(a) 1,469 1,887
— Amortisation of intangible assets — A 5(c) = 92
— Depreciation of property, plant and —E - BENMRETE
equipment 5(c) 3,388 1,627
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEENE 5(c) 2,047 -
— Net foreign exchange loss —INEEIEFE 329 383
Operating profit before changes in EEESEHH 2 KEER
working capital 7,426 3,883
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERL,(Em) 168 (244)
Decrease in trade receivables B S M GIER 3,654 4,090
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments &4 « T8 2018 I H ftb fE W 208
and other receivables (), (4,743) 1,480
Decrease/(increase) in loans and interest ERERRFERD,/(3Em)
receivables 19,402 (11,412
Increase in trade payables & S IS N 1,277 3,308
Decrease in accruals, deposits received EETER - BduRe REMER
and other payables IR (890) (60,442)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEREE(FTRBES
operations B 26,294 (69,337)
Interest received from money lending EURRESETE 2 FE 16,711 23,697
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid, net EREENGEHHE (6,367) (3,355)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB ERTER (89) (355)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KREEBHFFELE(FFR)RE
operating activities FE 36,549 (39,350)

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2020 HZ - - F A=+ HILFE

" _\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬂ%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

2020 2019
—ECEF —TNEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks TR TET
(Note)
(BtaE)
Investing activities REEE
Interest received BIFE 161 116

Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank
deposits

Payment for purchase of property, plant and BB - iR REEZ %18

equipment

Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant EE ¥ - BE M

RRHIRITEFORD, (B h0)

REENZE

9,582 (1,890)

(54,541) (1,741)

and equipment (16,310)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HE¥% - = L& ETERIE

equipment 230 234
Net cash used in investing activities REZE AR FE (44,568) (19,591)
Financing activities RETE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERLHERED (2,066) (542)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENAERSNF SIS (121) (19
Proceeds from new bank loans RITE RS HIE 24,270 -
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (869) -
Redemption of convertible bonds D R ES - (50,000)
Interest paid BERAFE (1,219) (700)
Proceeds from issue of shares pursuantto  iR{E{EIRET TR P15 7R 1B

rights issue 48,600
Transaction costs for rights issue AR H KA (1,876)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BETBREL (R BEE

financing activities R (4,537)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BERBSEEYEM (R

cash equivalents ek (63,478)
Cash and cash equivalents at REDNBEERESEEY

beginning of the year 117,491
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMEERS B E (204)
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERNBEERESEEY

of the year 53,809

Mt AEEDR - Z-NFEA-BEAKEE
WEBEREBEBYBMELNFE65 - B
BEIE  LERERTTEY - RIFE2.3 ¢

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative information is not
restated. See note 2.3.

BERT T R A bt B hr & IS IR R — &

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

1

COMPANY INFORMATION

PPS International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled
in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2012 and its shares are listed
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 17 June 2013.

The Company has its registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
On 14 December 2019, the principal place of business of the
Company has been changed from 24/F., SUP Tower, 75-83 King’s
Road, North Point, Hong Kong to Office A, 12/F., Tower A, Capital
Tower, No. 38 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

V N
94 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
A 4

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)
NEER

ERERARAR(ARA D AR-F
——FRA=t—-BERSHESEML
RiEft 2 EHRRERAR - ARNE-F
—ZFRNATEAREREMAERHME
PRARI([BZZPT ) GEM LT o

AR &) 2 5 9 S R KA Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111 » Cayman lIslands °
RZZE-NF+ZATMHA - ARrElzE
TEEME O BEAILAEEB75-835%
GEMMAEAERE BHEBNENES
EHEABH BT OAEIIEAE ©

ARRRAREER AR - HBLARZE
BT BRI ESS ©

BE_ZT-_TFAA=THILFEHRER
BHRERBEARRREMB AR (5HEE
[AEHE]) -

BRRBERI  GEMBHREATET
(TTETDZ2%H - BL(EBT]) RART
ZNEEBRAEE 2 2H/E -

FTEETHE
2.1 BHIEH

I FFREMBRRCRIFRBT B SR
g ([EESAAE DRMIM
BEREEHERELE(EEHB

SR D (BEMEERERNEE
MG ERELER - B G ER([FE
S E D RREBEZRE) BEE
BEANEFRANEERRIGD
BRERAEMER  ZEREBVHR
R INE SFEE 2 FTGEMEE & L 7 Al
(TGEM_ETHR A ]) MR 2 58 F 3 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) and the
interests in leasehold land and buildings are stated at their fair
values (see notes 2.6 and 2.7 respectively).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

2.1

2.2

yV N
EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020 \95/

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

BHIEH(E)

FRGHAGERME T HEREXK
HAKE AT R A G IR AR
el RGBT B AM B REER -
MiFE2. 3t AR il B RH BN E
A BARERRRNZESA VR
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AEE R EE G S HORB L
o

REUR AW S MERER 2 FrE %
BIESE AR - D AIEATE
AFABRE(EATEFABEDZS
MEENSRIAUNHEE T M NIE
FRIBERAFETR(H B R
26K2.7)°

RETABBUBEREERNNERE M
Bk - FEEEEFELHE - A5
KRR - mtFHIE - At kBRE
TEBRNEKA - UREE - BfF -
WABERXW2REE  BFHR
MHERR A BEER R BTG
BATEBARENZEEMARSE
W BREGRERAMEENEAMR
RS A EE & B EREEFD
HIE R R - BIRARAEA RN
ZEET

At R RREHERS - HEst
MEHET R G EFLERIEFTEH
A - AlgsHErHER @ E A AR M
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BEE AR ARIER] 2R

MR R BRI TERR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have had
a material impact on how the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 36).

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) Int-4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC)-Int 15 “Operating
Leases - Incentives” and HK(SIC)-Int 27 “Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease”.

HKFRS 16 introduces a single accounting model for lessees,
which requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for all leases, except for leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) and leases
of low-value assets. The lessor accounting requirements
are brought forward from HKAS 17 and remain substantially
unchanged. It also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable users
of the consolidated financial statements to assess the effect
that leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 July 2019.
The Group has elected to use the modified retrospective
approach and has therefore recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at 1 July 2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options applied
are set out below:

(i)

New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that were entered into or changed
on or after 1 July 2019. For contracts entered into before
1 July 2019, the Group has used the transitional practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of
which existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously assessed
as leases under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for
as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue to
be accounted for as executory contracts.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

23 EHERREH(H)

BESHBRES I MERTEUR
FTIE R 2 B E R 2 — R IR a5
LI

() HEZHEZ

MEETR2EEHT 2 EITHE
IR BEMBREE
AIF16RRBEEFREHER —
RrER ARSI E BRI & E (K
HEEEREETE) A EH
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BIEHIHE -

EAYBRELENE16 R
MEZHEREBERANAEHE
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RIVKEEZAK - N _F
—NFEA-RBZAEZZE
HmE ARECRERBEE
DEAITRENEZHRRRAE R
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BERBEBV RS ERNE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead,
the Group is required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, other than those short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets which are exempt.
As far as the Group is concerned, these newly capitalised
leases are in relation to leased properties as disclosed
in note 11. For an explanation of how the Group applies
lessee accounting, see note 2.9.

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 July 2019),
the Group determined the length of the remaining lease
terms and measured the lease liabilities for the leases
previously classified as operating leases at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 July 2019.
The weighted average of the incremental borrowing
rates used for determination of the present value of the
remaining lease payments was 5.1%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS 16:

— the Group elected not to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for which
the remaining lease terms ended within 12 months
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e.
where the lease term ends on or before 30 June
2020;

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

23 EHERREH(H)

(i) BREAESHEERBEZE

(continued)

— when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied
a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics (such as leases
with a similar remaining lease term for a similar
class of underlying asset in a similar economic
environment); and

—  when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group relied
on the previous assessment for onerous contract
provisions as at 30 June 2019 as an alternative to
performing an impairment review.

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised at an
amount equal to the amount recognised for the remaining
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at 30
June 2020.

So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on
leases previously classified as finance lease is concerned,
the Group is not required to make any adjustments at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, other than
changing the captions for the balances. Accordingly,
instead of “obligation under a finance lease”, the Group
reclassified these amounts to “lease liabilities”, and the
depreciated carrying amount of the corresponding leased
asset of HK$20,000, which was previously recognised
under property, plant and equipment, was remained
unchanged. There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in note 30 as at 30 June 2019 RS
to the opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as

at 1 July 2019:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)

23 EHERREH(H)

(i) BEAESHEERBEZE
(%)
TRAE-ZE—NFA=+H

?&Eﬁ)'ﬂﬁﬁ\—?

S A (UK 2307
—h&E+tHA—H

EE RAZHERBENNGER Y

HK$'000
FAET
Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019 R—Z—AENA=+HZ
4B T & ARE 4,320
Less: effect from short-term leases and other & : FISFREIN — T — T4
leases with remaining lease term NA-TASCEIRE
ending on or before 30 June 2020 EHHEREMEENTE (1,459
Less: total future interest expenses BT ARRF B 5 (150)
Add: lease payments for the addition period o REBRASBHETEITE
where the Group considers it EER SR 2 BEINAR
reasonably certain that it will HENK
exercise the extension options 562
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases RIERBE BV EmELRE 16981
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 ﬁﬁ? M EHERAMEERE 3,273
Add: finance lease liability recognised at m:RZE-NEFAA=-THERZ
30 June 2019 MERERE 51
Lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 RZZE-NF+A—-—BZHEAE 3,324
Analysed as: DA
— Current portion —neE s 1,917
— Non-current portion —JEmEE D 1,407
3,324

yV

A\ A

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020



¢ e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁjﬁﬁ% M{I--ELI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA7 7T31)7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEZ:HHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 23 STBESEH(E)
(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (i) REAEBTEERBEZE

(continued) (#&)

The following table summarises the impact of the RPN S I B %
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated Al 165 H AN S BEIZIEE DT
statement of financial position analysed by line items. Line HERE AR R ERNEE - I
items that were not affected by the changes have not BYZEEHTE BRI
been included. BIEER °

Carrying Impact upon Carrying

amount at adoption of amount at
30 June 2019 HKFRS 16 1 July 2019
R-ZB—NF HBEREEN R=-T—ILF
NA=1+H F165 B2 +tHA—H

Z IREE =2 ZIRE{E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET FHET
Right-of-use assets TREEE - 3,273 3,273
Total non-current assets kRBEELEE 32,650 3,273 35,923
Lease liabilities (current portion) FE & E(REIEND) - 1,917 1,917
Obligation under a finance BB EFE
lease 51 (61) -
Total current liabilities mENEERE 53,552 1,866 55,418
Net current assets REEEFRE 194,222 (1,866) 192,356
Total assets less current HWEERRBAE
liabilities 226,872 1,407 228,279
Lease liabilities (non-current HEBBECGERBIHD)
portion) - 1,407 1,407
Total non-current liabilities JEREI & EHELE 10,542 1,407 11,949
NET ASSETS EEFE 216,330 - 216,330

HBRZERARXRE i 2020 101 =———
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

yV

| S

A

(iii) Impact on the financial performance and cash flows

of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019, the Group as a lessee
is required to recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liabilities, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. This results in an insignificant impact on the
reported loss for the year ended 30 June 2020 in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss, as
compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been applied
during the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Group as
a lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest element.
These elements are classified as financing cash outflows,
similar to how leases previously classified as finance
leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than as
operating cash outflows, as was the case for operating
leases under HKAS 17. Although total cash flows are
unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore results
in changes in presentation of cash flows within the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have significant
impact on certain line items on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
cash flows if HKAS 17 had been applied during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

2.4 MBRRARFEERES

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

yV

2.4

2.5

| S

A

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.10(ii).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held interest in the acquire; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then its excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.10(ii)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any

attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment
and are initially stated at fair value which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL are
subsequently recognised in profit or loss if the investments do
not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income (recycling).

Property, plant and equipment

Interest in leasehold land and buildings, where the Group is
the registered owner of the property interest, held for own
use are stated at its revaluated amount, being its fair value at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2.10(ii).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for own
use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income
and are accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held
in the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately
prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged
to profit or loss.

2.6

2.7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

yV

| S

A

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation reserve to
accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings 46 years
Furniture and fixtures 31to 7 years
Equipment and machinery 3to 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Leasehold improvement Over the term of lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

2.8 B EE(BERM)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.10(ii)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The contract backlog with finite useful
lives are amortised from the date it is available for use and its
estimated useful lives is 3 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets, including money lender licenses, are not
amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite.
Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is
indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Leased assets

yV

| S

A

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

0]

Policy applicable from 1 July 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Leased assets (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

2 FEETEHRGE)

29 HEEE(HE)

(i)  Policy applicable from 1 July 2019 (continued) () B=F— AF+tHA—HEEBERA

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way,
a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.10(ii)). Depreciation is
calculated to write off the cost of right-of-use assets using
the straight-line method over the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Leased assets (continued)

V aN

\C 4

(i) Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group. Leases which did not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group were
classified as operating leases.

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets were recognised
as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, were recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation was
provided at rates which wrote off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it was likely
the Group would obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note 2.7. Impairment losses were
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2.10(ii). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments were charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals were charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they were incurred.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases were
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis was more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received were recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they were incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets

0]

Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including trade and other receivables,
loans and interest receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents). Financial assets
measured at FVPL are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive), discounted at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the
Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs which
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of these financial assets. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

V aN

AN 4
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Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial asset assessed at the end of the reporting period
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held). The Group considers both quantitative and
quallitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial asset’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to

meset its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2.22
is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

V aN

P4
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Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

—  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) 210 FEBEBEREEREE)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) EbIEmEEERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

—  right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

A 4

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Inventories 211 &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

Inventories, which represent consumable goods, are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

2.12 Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, or if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted to
borrowers in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see
note 2.10(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
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(CONTINUED)
2.13 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses (see
note 2.10(i)).

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, restricted deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.10(j).

2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

2.16 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 2.24).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Convertible bonds

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

217 AR ES

Convertible bonds that can be converted into ordinary shares
at the option of the holder, where the number of shares to
be issued is fixed, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments, i.e. they contain both a liability component and an
equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value based on the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the prevailing market
rate of interest for similar non-convertible instruments. The
equity component is the difference between the initial fair value
of the convertible bonds as a whole and the initial fair value
of the liability component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. Interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method.
The equity component is recognised in the convertible bonds
reserve until either the convertible bonds are converted or
redeemed.

If the convertible bonds are converted, the convertible bonds
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the convertible bonds are redeemed, the convertible
bonds reserve is released directly to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Employee benefits
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Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
in Hong Kong and defined contribution government
pension schemes in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the retirement
benefit scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions
to this retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories at the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Long service payments payable on cessation of
employment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the long service
payment payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to its present
value and reduced by entitlements accrued under
the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits have already been vested.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company.

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Trinomial
Option Pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.

The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to accumulated
losses).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Income tax
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

219 Fri8®t

REZMSH BB EHRANELT
FRSEEL A BENES - AEINIA
MELEHEEEMB ENEEIHER
SRR - EERNEMEERSNE
BEREaNERZHB BRERI -
FEULBERT - HERESED BN E
b E U sk B R s R

EDEARUE TYIR M PORE R BB A - T
R A SR MR AR o B T 4B 2
BREE  ARBEFRE AN 2 B
et -

BRI E EMBED BB AT
ERTEREZRES  TREREHR
BEMBEEM GRS CAHRAEER
FELEEMBENTENER - BT
PIRE E T A] LA B AR A IR B 1B
RAREGARBERESE

BaETHISMERIN - PIARIERIAR
BERAERERBAEEDN RIRESL
JERR M et M) 55 7] B R B 7 T A 3K
B RERR © Al ol EHERIRE A I E
ERZBEEHAEE 2 BRRERTUR
Mo BEZEREBERAEERTY
RrERE - MR R — TS RE 2 A
—ERNERER - YRBRELD A
IRERZE 2 F—HRzREET
MIREE < HIAB R B R Sk EE
HARE M - fEORTER A M ERT L
ERRBBAFEABARERHIEA
R R IEER R EERIERIAER
ER - TERARA—ER  ERE
TR — B &R — BRI TR
B - WRETEREENERTIAE
BRHAERLHN — B ZERAEANE
[B] o



o,’

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

2.19 Fr{S% (&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(orovided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

yV

| S

A

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Financial guarantees issued

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

220 BB HIKER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially stated at fair value
(being the transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise
be reliably estimated) as deferred income. Thereafter, the
amount of the guarantee is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when
ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in deferred income in respect
of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in
note 2.10(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

yV

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.22 Revenue and other income

| S

A

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from provision of services and interest income from money
lending in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a service is
transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

(i) Provision of environmental and cleaning services

Service income received or receivable from customers
when the environment and cleaning service contracts,
which relates to routine environmental and cleaning
services, are entered into, which is recognised over time
in proportion to the stage of completion of the service
contract as the work is performed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2.10(i)).

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by the way of reduced depreciation expense.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Translation of foreign currencies

yV

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

2.24 Borrowing costs

| S

A

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantive period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

2.23

2.24

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

HNmE

FRZINERZFHIRRZ A M2 EX
BwE - INEHEE B EERER
ERRERRZERGE - Miha

LASNEEIRIE SE R ANGT B 2 SFE B B
KRETHER 5 B BER 2 SNEE R
BE - LRFERIIRINEAGHEZ
FEBEERBBEIIZRARFERT
BERZINEEXRETHRE -

SNBIZRTS 2 B TR R 5 R HIZ &
FRONEERFE 2 [ERMB BT
BMIIORKRIR B (B1RA H AT B SN
BXBMELNBEULEERA
BEREEFLENNRFERE) TS
BIRE R Z W INERE KB 58
7T e RS2 A EB DN EME
T et B R S I S TR S MR R S O e

st
= o
R

HESBEIEBE - ARINEEBNHR
SR BRERS N LB R ERER R

BHREFDAEES -

RN

AW  BEREERE(FR R
REFETREERRERE 2 BgsfEd
ERMBZEE) MEL ZEFRMA -
BRCRZEERAZ—#D - FTA
HAEFRRAREERRER -



o,’

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬂjﬁﬁ% M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Related parties 2.25 BAEE S
() A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is () MHBUATAL  BIZALTHZ
related to the Group if that person: ATz i AR RS R [ A R
(1) has control or joint control of the Group; (1) BeZmIEHl sk FL R = Hl A S
;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or (2) B ANE B INE AF
25
(3) is a member of the key management personnel of @) AAKBEIAEEHAF
the Group or the Group’s parent. MTEEEEKE -
(i) Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following (i) WA NI EM G BEE
conditions applies: B E G
(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same (1) ZEBHEAEEEBR —%
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary 8= NI QI E=R SN
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). IR INGINYIEES 1=
AR LA ) o
(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the 2 —HERAS—ERBZH
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a BRNRHEERE(HSE—
member of a group of which the other entity is a BEREAKBERRZEEE
member). THRERARZHBERNF N

SELE) -

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third Q) MHEEEHRRA—E5=7H
party. VEERE -

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the 4 —HERBAFE=FEEHN
other entity is an associate of the third entity. GELE ME—HEEAR

ZE=AEREEE R o

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (6) EEATEENELRE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BB s BEREESNS
related to the Group. AL BB AR AT -

EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Related parties (continued)

yV

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

2.26 Segment reporting

| S

A

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%é/ﬁ\jﬁﬁi M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WERDHBHEE
(a) Revenue (a) Wz
Revenue represents the services rendered to customers from Wi B BRHRE REZRBEME
the provision of environmental and cleaning services and PR ) PR 7% B U 3 TS RN A ) &
interest income earned from the money lending business, as WAL -
follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Revenue within the scope of EBVMKREENFEISHKEER
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts 2 W[ BEFEA#HUkE ]
with Customers”
Service income from environmental IRIRRER 2 BRIEWA
and cleaning 328,675 292,389
Revenue from other sources H A SRR
Interest income from money lending EFEE 2 MBI A 16,711 23,697
345,386 316,086
(b) Segment reporting (b) DS
The Group determines its operating segments based on the NEEREF 2EEREERESIE
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, which AR (BEERDE R D EFIRFTH)
are used to make strategic decisions including resources ZEHMEETREENHS

allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The segments are managed separately as each business offers RN EGRE N RER MR - AT
different products and services and requires different business BEBRBAZER - B IHER
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief B - TRTEAEENTRED S
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at W FEEERRE WEMATHRIE
the reportable segments of the Group. The following summary EEDHES c AEBSAIMENE
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable ZEBHn T
segments:
Environmental and Provision of environmental and RIRRBR REERFERMH
cleaning cleaning services in Hong Kong RIE KB R ARTS
and the PRC
Money lending Provision of money lending & REBRPERE
business in Hong Kong and e
the PRC
Investments Investments in financial assets ®E RESREE
The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance FELERREANTRED RS
of the operating segments based on a measure of reportable HFFEMEEE D RRR - ZET2
segment results. This measurement basis excludes central EENBERRITHBEEMMEAR (R
administrative and other costs including directors’ emoluments, FESME A EFZ REERK
other operating expenses and finance costs. ) e

N

y
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj i% ﬁ% M:.I--E\I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 W&EkoyHHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEEwE (&)
Segment assets mainly exclude corporate assets, property, NEEEFETRIESETERNAR
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and cash and cash BE  ME BENRSEE CAEER
equivalents that are managed on a central basis. Goodwill and EARBRERBREFEY - i LE
intangible assets are allocated to reportable segments. WEENI T AIMmEHEL -
Segment liabilities mainly exclude corporate liabilities, bank DEBEFENRRELAFEAE - R1T
loans and bond. B RESF -
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) PHEE LEREE
2020
BIER
Environmental
and cleaning  Investments Moneylending  Unallocated Total
BHEREZ RE HiE AR Eh

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn T T

Reportable segment revenue from external BB EBREANRENDZEFH

customers recognised by over time THREIPhE 328,675 16,711 345,386
Reportable segment profit/{loss) REHTEA/ (FE) 13,013 (28,258) (14,365)
Unallocated corporate expense RABLERY
Other income, other gains and otherlosses ~ EEMA » UG REREEN K

and impaiments HE (13,192)
Central administrative costs RATHAA (4,402)
Finance costs BERKE (1,348)
Loss hefore taxation RERAEE (33,307)
Other segment information EthAHER
Impairment loss on loans and ERETRASHEER

interest receivables
Revaluation loss on property, W% BERIGEERFE

plant and equipment
Depreciation of: nE:
~ property, plant and equipment -0% HEREE
- right-of-use assets -fPREEE

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬂjﬁﬁ% M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHESHHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2EEwE (&)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () #HEE BEREE(E)
2019
“E-nE
Environmental
andcleaning  Investments ~ Moneylending  Unallocated Total
REREZ & HfE AR et

HKB000  HKS000  HKBO00  HKSOOO  HKS00
AR AR TAT TAT TAT

Reportable segment revenue from external R BB RANRENPEFH
customers recognised by over time IREI PG 292,389 - 23,697 - 316,086

Reportable segment profit/{loss) TRENTEA/ (B8 14,646 (14) 13345 - 7977

Unallocated corporate income/(expense) ~ AABLEMA/(B%)
Other income, ather gains and other losses HA - B EREEEUR

and impairments e 4
Oentral administrative costs RATRRA (2,406)
Finance costs BERK (1,868)
Profit before taxation BBAER 23,707
Other segment information b AHER
Amortisation of infangiole assets BRLEEH 92 - - - R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « BE RiMETE 1617 - - 10 1,627

EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj i% *ﬁ% WEI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 W&EkoyHHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEEwE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () #BEE BEREEE)
2020 2019
3 Z3-hE
Environmental Money Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending Total  and cleaning  Investments lending Total
REREZ K& M &t BEREZ % i g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TA7 -7 T T Fin Fan T Fin
Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 126,385 206,619 111672 - 126,077 237,749
Unallocated corporate assets  AARAEEE 58,742 4675
265,361 280,424
Liabilities gk
Seqmen fabiltes S8 (48,090) 0285 (50303 LN ) 6% 200
Unallocated corporate liabities # AR 28 & (34,77) (11,188)

(85,166) (64,094)

Other segment information Eft 3 5& 4
Addtions to segment FAANDERDAE

non-current assets 1,74 - - 1,741

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%é/ﬁ\ji%ﬁi M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHESHHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2EHE (&)
(i) Geographical information and major customers (i) MEERREEEF
The following table sets out information about the TREF A ()R E 2R B B
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from B ZWE RNV ER 2 % -
external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant BEREE - CTREEE &
and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets HEEREMEB([EEFRBE
and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The E e 2 &k - 5T IE
geographical location of the specified non-current assets MBEEMETHEIZEEER
is based on the physical location of the assets, in case FriEtb Bt (B2 - WE R
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets LEREEEMS) WREE
and the location of the operation to which they are FrEth 2 (LEFEEREEM
allocated, in case of intangible assets and gooduwill. F)EID e
Revenue from Specified non-current
external customers assets
REIBEE 2 Wi EBEFRBERE
2020 2019 2020 2019
bt 222 —E-NF gt 222 —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHIT FHERT FA&T
Hong Kong BB 316,731 285,320 4,342
The PRC s 28,655 30,766 3,364
345,386 316,086 7,706
Revenue from major customer arising from provision of RFIRBNFRRBEFTISR A
environmental and cleaning services which accounted for FERFPMME(ERYZE10%
10% or more of the total revenue is set out below: A E)EHIT ¢
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT

Customer A =EA ‘E!H 48,116

EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

4 OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND OTHER 4 HilgA - Hittlhsm R EtmEHE

LOSSES AND IMPAIRMENTS

Other income

Bank interest income
Government grants (Note)
Sundry income

Other gains
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net

Other losses and impairments

Impairment loss on loans and
interest receivables

Revaluation loss on property, plant
and equipment

LR RE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT T
Haug A
ERITH B HA 116
BB (MI5E) -
HIRUA 71
187
Hiugs
HEYE - BE MR EREFE
HiEsia RmE
FEWEFR R F BIRERE
(37,389) -
W BER&EEGREE
(13,213) -
(50,602) -
(45,343) 187

Note: The Group successfully applied for fund support from the Employment

Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region Government. The purpose of the
funding is to provide financial support to enterprises to retain their
employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms
of the grant, the Group is required not to make redundancies during
the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the
employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

5

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a) Finance costs:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)
BRELAT (B518) DR F
BREBLAT(EE) & E MR THIEE -

Effective interest on convertible bonds
(note 20)
Effective interest on bond (note 24)
Finance charges on obligations
under finance leases
Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities

B BENE(FEE24)

RITERZHE
HERBZHE

AR ES 2 B (M E20)

AMEEEREATZHEER

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments
(note 7)):

HE - TEREAMET
FE R FORIRET BIH (R

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Provision for long service payments

RS BE

(@) RERA :

2020 2019

—EEF —ZE-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

1,050

818

19

1,887

(b) EIRAK(BEESHMH

(FsE7)) -

2020 2019

—ECRF —E-NEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THExT FHT

176,356 156,310

5,877 5,549

548 235

182,781 162,094

EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020 3

V 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR HRAR MR

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 BR¥{AT(EER), TaFl (&)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

(c) Otheritems: (c) HfbiEHE :
2020 2019
—EBECEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR 2 B 690
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EE 92
Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 5,065
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE
equipment
— assets under finance leases —REHEETEE 272
— other assets owned by the Group —AREBEHENEMEE 1,355
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERE -
Expense relating to short-term leases and ~ FIgEHIR ZZ =T F X A
other leases with remaining lease term =t AR AI L R
ending on or before 30 June 2020 (Note) A& & EithFH E+ERAR X
(H¥3E) -
Net foreign exchange loss HNE B 1R 3 EE 32
Total minimum lease payments for leases ~ SCRIBIEE B S5HER|E 1758
previously classified as operating leases NEAKEHE HE Y
under HKAS 17 (Note) SEMAENFRET) 4,142

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 July 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. The depreciated carrying amount of the finance lease assets
which were previously included in property, plant and equipment
remains unchanged. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets
at 1 July 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the
depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach,

the comparative information is not restated (see note 2.3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #HR&BEZERTHFIEB
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) FEBEXRPHBIIEE
loss represents:

2020 2019
—EEF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax  ENEi%{5E — &E F5%

Provision for the year FREE 4,061
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEBTFERNEERE (437)
3,624
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income  BIfi%i18 — R EAER
Tax
Provision for the year FREE 74
Over-provision in respect of prior years BREBAFENBREEE -
74
Deferred tax expense (note 25(b)) IRFER TE R X (MiEE25(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary AR A
differences 556
Income tax expense FriSTiF = 4,254
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEFEH
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended HE_Z-_ZTFXA=THILFESR
30 June 2020 is calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) of the ARG R B ERFE NG ERRTR
estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one FE16.5%( ZZF—N45F : 16.5%) 5T
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under & EAEE—EMBATRRIN - 5%
the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. B AR AFEHMRTEGEET
& EEEE -
For this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable Z M B R B B B 2,000,000 7% JT fE
profits are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the remaining RREFIE8.25% ( —ZFE— hF
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%). 8.25% ) WL K& - MR T B JE
R RFIZ165% (=T —NF -

16.6%) BB R HFK -

EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

6

yV

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

| S

A

loss represents: (continued)
Income tax from other tax jurisdictions

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in respective tax jurisdictions.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject to the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax of 25% (2019: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates of 5% or
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors
or companies incorporated in Hong Kong or for other foreign
investors, respectively.

At 30 June 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in respect of tax that would be payable on
the unremitted profits of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1
January 2008 as the directors of the Company is in a position
to control the dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no
distribution of such profits is expected to be declared from the
PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

REBEBERPHAEHR(E)

(a) FREB\HERPHBIAE  (F)

Rt BB Z BRI TEH

RERSNERABEBRAS(R
BEBRES DRARES - AEE
BIER S B AR ARG
B o

el hTE e

FARR B EE AR S 2 B B A Rl R ZE
WP EMBRE2L%R(ZE—N
G 25%) BN o

RIERBITE - AEEFEME AR
([FEMBAR DB =S NF—A
—BEAEMNERDIKE @af T
SN E BN E B ML AF]
SR E MG IME B E R D RIETE5%
K 10%TE TSR ©

R-B-EBER-_E-AFEA=1
B vERE-_ZENF—A—AHE
B R BB A B R EE g B FE A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #HR&BEHmRFHFEHE)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) REABRTENMEHAXHE
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: BT (EE) BRI
2020 2019
—EEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(E1E), 5 (33,307) 23,707
Notional tax (credit)/expense on profit BRI E AN B RTIE
or loss before taxation at Hong Kong (B%), /X BEBEEM
statutory tax rate KEHE (5,495) 3,912
Tax effect of non-taxable income LIk TRH&)\E’JTRV%; (1,565) (463)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT HUR A S R I s 2 8,449 1,561
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRBARIBEENOTRER
recognised z 1,186 13
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses EF SRR T AR AR
previously not recognised Hgse s (33) (230)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  K{ B A & T EH RH £ 235 63

Over-provision in respect of prior years BEBTFERNEEREE (56) (437)
Tax concession WsE=R (211) (165)

Income tax expense FTiSfiF X 2,510 4,254

yV N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR HRAR MR

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance and

Fees benefits in kind

g #5 - BERENER

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

7 EEME
RIBBBRAEDIZEI83()E - RR(RE
E=NGEEM) ROIE28RGEM LT
A EXEMESRENT -

Contributions to
Discretionary defined contribution
bonuses retirement plan Total
Mg ERHTEAI HBU EH

2020 2019 2020 2019

ZBCBE CTNF ZBCRE CTONR
Notes ~ HK§'000  HKS00  HKS$'000  HKS000
i TRR  TAT TR TER

Present directors RiEES
Executive directors #nEE
Mr. Yu Shacheng FETRE 600
Mr. Lai Tin Ming BRALEE 10
Independent non-executive  BuFEHT
directors Bz
Mr. Kiwong Tsz Ching, Jack ~ BFigots 120
Mr. Meng Enhai ARERE 110
Mr. Wang Cui THEE 1 -
Former directors nEEE
Executive director #igs
M. Yeung Yat Chuen BASRE 2 9%
Independent non-executive B4
directors Bz
Mr.Chui ChiYun, Robert B 3 10
Mr. Wong Hu Fong IENEE 4 120

1,166

During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, no director waived

or agreed to waive any emoluments. No emoluments were paid by

the Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Notes:

1.

V

| S

Mr. Wang Cui was appointed on 18 May 2020.

Mr. Yeung Yat Chuen resigned on 31 July 2018.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert resigned on 31 July 2018.

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong resigned on 18 May 2020.
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2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBIBE TNF CBIRE CT0F CBIBE TR
HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$O000

TRn  TET  TRn  TETL  TEn  TER

1239
908

120
10

482

REEZZZFR_F-NFRA=T
HIEFE @ WEEENENKRERETM
B o NEBBERNARREZ L EM
B - YEAIAKRINAREEE M EE
HERBERE -

GG

1, FTREGER-_ZE_ZFRA+N\BEZ
£

2. BARKAER-Z-N\FLA=t+—H#E
£

3. EFCEER-_Z-N\FLA=+—B#
f£o

4. IHEMEER-_Z_TFRAT/\HE
£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%é/ﬁgfﬁﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)
8 EE¥HAL

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS o
TERSHFALY ME(ZZE-NEF:

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2019: —E)VAEE  HEENNETIEE - 54
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The BEM=%(—F— % : ®H) ATHHE
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2019: WERN -

two) individuals are as follows:

2020 2019
—T=FF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FA&T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENKEMET 970
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT 74
Contributions to defined contribution TE R SR IRET IR 5K
retirement plan 33
1,077
The emoluments of the other three (2019: two) individuals with the BHEM=F(ZZF—NF : MB)E=F
highest emoluments are within the following band: ATHEHBER T #HE :
2020 2019
—E-EHE TN
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 8712 1,000,000/8 7T -I 2

yV N
EHERARAT 3k 2020 \143/_
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RMEE
9 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue,
calculated as follows:

(i) (Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)
9 BR(EE) &R
(a) BREXR(EHE) BR

BERER(BR) B DREARE
BHEARMG(BR), (G REETE
BRI BGETEMT

() ERTEEAEL (EE)

YAl
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of ~ ANAFIHEA AREE (E1E),
the Company gl 18,477
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) ZBBERINEFGE
2020 2019
—EIERF —E-hEF
’000 ‘000
TR Fix
Issued ordinary shares at beginning of ~ FF#]E 217 E @A
the year 540,000 270,000
Effect of rights issue on 9 July 2018 —ZE-N\FtANBHERNE
(note 28(a)(i) 2 (Mf5E28(a)(i) 266,621
Weighted average number of ordinary A5 AR B & 3@ AL hn i F 19 88
shares at end of the year 540,000 536,621

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 30
June 2020 and 2019 is the same as the basic (loss)/earnings
per share as the Company does not have any potential dilutive
ordinary shares during the years ended 30 June 2020 and
2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬂjﬁﬁ% M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y%  BMERRZE
Equipment
Landand Furniture and and Motor ~ Computer  Leasehold
buildings fixtures  machinery vehicles  equipment improvement Total
IHRER GRAREE RERES RE ElRE HELE st

HK§000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKS000  HK§000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR ThL

Cost or valuation KA EE
At 1 July 2018 RZE-N\E
+tA-H - 1,627 11,687 16,263 55 1,462 31,004
Additions AE - 77 978 669 22 - 1,741
Written off Hsa - - (1) - - - (1)
Disposals & - - - (3,001) - - (3,001)
Exchange realignment B i - @ (25) - (3 - (30)
At 30 June 2019 RZZT-nF
ANAZTH - 1,702 12,624 13,931 74 1,462 29,793
Representing b
Cost KR - 1,702 12,624 13,931 74 1,462 29,793
At 1 July 2019 RZE-NE
tHA-H - 1,702 12,624 13,931 74 1,462 29,793
Additions E 67,046 596 1,178 - 224 1,807 70,851
Revaluation loss BEE (13,213) - - - - - (13,213)
Less: elimination of B RETTEH
accumulated
depreciation (1,433 - - - - - (1,433
Written off sa - - - - - (1,179) (1,179)
Disposals HE - - - (1,968) - - (1,968)
Exchange realignment B 5 R - )] (22) - &) - 27)
At 30 June 2020 R-B-BF
AB=TH 52,400 2,296 13,780 11,963 295 2,096 82,830
Representing b
Cost R - 2,29 13,780 11,963 295 2,09 30430
Valuation fhfE 52,400 - - - - - 52,400
52,400 2,296 13,780 11,963 295 2,096 82,830

y N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

yV

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

10 1% - BFER&RE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Equipment
Landand Furniture and and Motor ~ Computer  Leasehold
buildings fixtures  machinery vehicles  equipment improvement Total
IHREF GRAREE RERES RE %A HELE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL THL THL
Accumulated depreciation  B3HiTE
At 1 July 2018 RZZ-\5F
+tA-H - 828 8,359 15,498 3 1,462 26,178
Charge for the year FEXM - 214 985 407 21 - 1,627
Written off Hisa - - (1) - - - (1)
Eliminated on disposals BB 8 - - - (2,767) - - (2,767)
Exchange realignment ERAE - (1) ) - ) - )
At 30 June 2019 and RZZ-NE
1July 2019 ~A=ZTER
3
+tA-H - 1,04 9,328 13,138 50 1,462 25,019
Charge for the year FEXM 1,433 334 1,052 305 55 209 3,388
Elimination on revaluation BB (1,433) - - - - - (1,439)
Written off Hisa - - - - - (1,173) (1,173)
Fliminated on disposals HEREH - - - (1968) - - (1,968)
Exchange realignment AR - (1) (1) - 2 - (14)
At 30 June 2020 R-B-%%
~B=TH - 1,374 10,369 11,475 103 498 23,819
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2020 RIBZRE
~A=TH 52,400 922 3,411 488 192 1,598 59,011
At 30 June 2019 RZB-NE
NAZTAH - 661 3,296 793 24 - 4,774

The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under a medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings is measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into Level 2 fair value measurement within the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than unadjusted quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

| S

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings at 30 June 2020
has been arrived at on the basis of valuation by Royson Valuation
Advisory Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group, and its fair value is determined using the
market approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis using market data
which is publicly available. Had they been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount would have been
HK$65,613,000.

At 30 June 2020, the Group had pledged its land and buildings
with carrying amount of HK$52,400,000 (2019: HK$NIl) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 21) and performance
bonds issued (note 34(a)).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

10 ¥% - BERZE(E)

AEELMREFR_TEEF A=
HZRAFEERBEEAREENEEE L
%I BRBERMERMERMEHAGR
NEFEZ HERE - MEARXFHEDLKES
ZRAFAIETSEBEBREAG T HRE
RREEZAELBYELRHEER
BRIRATHEET - WRFLHRET
BEABRFAFTENNER - AIRREERS
65,613,000/ 7T ©

REZZBE-TFA=ZTH A£EEK
HH IR E 1B 452,400,000 T(—Z—Hh
F BTN RIET  LERERT
AEBRRITRE (HF21) RFTE B

HRFE (M 5E34()) °

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 11 FRHEEE
HK$’'000
FAET

Cost ﬁJZZF
At 30 June 2019 R-ZZT—-NFA=1H -
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 El /\F‘éﬁﬁ ARV BEWELERE16K 2R 3,273
At 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020 RZE-—NFLtA—BRZZE_ZTFA=1H 3,273
Accumulated depreciation HitineE
At 1 July 2019 RZE—hF+LtH—H -
Charge for the year FEZH 2,047
At 30 June 2020 R-ZB-2HFXA=1+H 2,047
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2020 R-E-EFXA=T1H 1,226
The Group has obtained right to use certain properties as its office AEBCERZEHEERZNEHETY

premises and warehouse through tenancy agreements. The leases XAEERAEMENEE E’J*&ﬁ‘ ) o %%
run for a period of 2 to 4 years, at the end of which period all HERH2Z4F - IBERNEBER
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease EMER c ZFHEWTRENEHREN

payments. K e

yV N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁj i% ﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BFE&EE
Money
Contract lender
backlog license Total
REREH BMEAER et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
(note (a)) (note (b))
(KiEE(a) (FtE (o))
Cost AR
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 and RZ=ZZE—\F+LH—H
1 July 2019 “E-NFARA=THEE
—E-NFEHA—H 333 969 1,302
Written-off G (333) (969) (1,302)
At 30 June 2020 RZZEZZFNA=1+H - - -
Accumulated amortisation and R &RE
impairment
At 1 July 2018 RZE—-N\FtA—H 241 969 1,210
Charge for the year FELH 92 - 92
At 30 June 2019 and 1 July 2019 R_ZT—NFA=+HK
—ZE-NF+A—H 333 969 1,302
Written-off ! (333) (969) (1,302)
At 30 June 2020 R-ZEZEFRA=TH - - -
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2020 and 2019 RZBEZZFER-T—NF
~NA=Z+H - - -
The amortisation charge for the year was included in “Administrative FRNHEBRHE T AR BRI 1THHA
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. A e

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

13

@)

Contract backlog has been allocated to the CGU, Environmental
and cleaning — the PRC, for impairment testing purposes. Details of
impairment test was disclosed in note 13.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 75517R)

2 BREE(H)

GEE

@ AEREHNEDEERSELSM - RE
K88 —h BUAERERR < RERHF
TERAIRE1827 ©

(o)  The money lender license under a brand name “Profit Management” (o) THRF IR T 2 BB AR R T AN 52 B 48

entitles the Group to undertake the money lender’s business using FIRUEE B BARE — 5 A B A R RR
the money lender license for 1 year from the date of acquisition and BERATERNREXEEW ] FFELE -
to renew annually with insignificant cost. The money lender license is Et - BUE AR AR A A H R Al
therefore considered having indefinite economic useful life. KOBFER -
On 30 June 2018, the management realised that the performance of RIE—\FNA=Z1+H EEEBZH
money lending business under the brand name “Profit Management” B ARTISH TR [RA@RET 2
was worse than expected due to tough market competition. After MEESRFENTER - PR HEE R HED
the assessment on the respective date, the management determined FHhiE - BIREEEMEERE TEHER
to recognise a full impairment in respect of the decline of operating ZHERE Al - BEEZZ—/\FXA
performance. As a result, the impairment loss of HK$969,000 had =+ HIEFERE BRI EE18969,000
been recognised since the year ended 30 June 2018. BT ©

GOODWILL 13 &

HK$’000
FHET

Cost and carrying amount RAREREE
At 30 June 2020 and 2019 R-ZZE_EFR_T-NFRA=TH 2,932

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to
country of operation and operating segment as follows:

BERENREELEWRENR

BEDRE K EERMEEN R
EXRKECDEAREELEN

2020 2019
—E-EF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THT

Environmental and cleaning — the PRC

REMFE—F

l!! 2,932

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently
if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

AEEBFETHERENR - HER
BABEHBRENIR - M@ B AEHETT
A

yV N
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13

yV

| S

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill
(continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the
value-in-use calculation under the income approach, which includes
the discounted cash flows sourced from the financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five-year period, and the
post-tax discount rate of approximately 13.6% (2019: 15.1%) that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period
have been extrapolated using a steady 2.0% (2019: 3.0%) per
annum growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long term
average growth rate for the market.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the
CGU are as follows:

Budgeted market share The values assigned to the assumption
reflect past experience, except for the
growth factor, which is consistent with
the directors’ estimation of the revenue
from existing and potential customers.
The directors believe that planned revenue
growth per year for the next five years is
reasonably achievable.

In order to maintain successive business
operations of the CGU, the directors
believe that there is no particular difficulty
in renewal of the service contracts of the
existing customers in the CGU.

Number of service
contracts

The directors of the Company believe that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
its recoverable amount.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

13 BHE(HE)

BERENREELEMRERNR
()

ReEEEMATE SR HIRBERAETF
MEREBEFEFRETE EFBRIER
BEEEIEZAEAFHEZMBRES
FrSmBIREIAE M MBEERIREY
183.6% (ZF—NF : 15.1%) R IR
BHESEREERESRESELASUEER
B 5T o

REHBMNZ R READEREEEE
MR AR OB P MR T f -
BB R 2 0 SR E A EE2.0%
TN B0%MFRRERE © %
ERELRBHTEZ RATHEEE -

SHRSEE R FAEENAALE
ERRIT

BEMSMHE BRAETZEERRB
FEE - BRIBREZIN
HEESYWRERARE
ERERZEZE—% -
EERERARAFETFEN
SR EE R ASE/NTA]
EIRKF o

RBEHMN BERREELEUNE

2AE BEGEE EFME
EBRTELBURAR
F B BR# & 430 #8455 Bl N
2o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%é/ﬁgfﬁﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES 14 BEFEWRIE
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance of B SEWHIE - HREIEEET
HKS$NIl (2019: HK$Nil) BIT(ZE—NF  TET) 57,364
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERD AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RIREHR - HBEZE A (RIS
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date (or date of RAH  UREEEE)ZINES
revenue recognition, if earlier) and net of loss allowance for FEU FOE (R E BB EBEE)
credit losses, is as follows: ERERDATANT
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 - 30 days 02 30H 43,965
31 - 60 days 31260H 9,097
61 — 90 days 61%290H 2,833
Over 90 days HB:E90H 1,469
57,364
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note BRAAEBEERR 2 E—FFEH
29(a). FHIEE29(a) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁj i% ﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 14 E S EWFIE(E)
(b) Trade receivables that are not impaired (b) RREEZEWRRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither WiEBEENHEREERARECEDE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as WHRIE 2 BRER D ATRA T
follows:
2020 2019
—B-EHF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
0 - 30 days past due #HI0Z30H 43,965
31 - 60 days past due #EA31Z60H 9,097
61 — 90 days past due #HIB1Z=90H 2,833
Over 90 days past due #EHEIRO0H 1,469
57,364

15 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER - - -
15 &€ - ANFAERHEMEYRE

RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deposits (note (a)) Ze (M) 3,064
Prepayments TEfIRUB 808
Other receivables E A fEYRIE 527
4,399
All of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables, BB TIE£1,721,0008 T ( — 2 — LE
apart from certain deposits of HK$1,721,000 (2019: HK$1,237,000), 1,237,000 7T) 50 - RNEE 2 EIRE - 78
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one S 5RIE M E A FE U F B TR HRIT i — A
year. el iER AR
(a) Deposits (a) &<
The Group has tendered for certain environmental services RZZEZZFA=+H  AEEHEB
contracts and deposited sums of approximately HK$974,000 BIEETRRRGEAY - W Hike
(2019: HK$1,725,000) as tender deposits at 30 June 2020. HEEHIQ74,0008 L (ZE— NF -
The tender deposits are interest-free and repayable at the end 1,725,000 T )ERRIFIR S « 11T
of the tender. REATIHE  ARBELERKE

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

16 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 75517R)

16 BERERKEFE

2020 2019
~E-%F “FNF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXHa FSHS st BN B2 @t

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx THR

Secured loans by: NG S EEER 2

HEER:

- mortgage — 128 8,402 59
- personal guarantees —EAER 88,682 2,526
Unsecured loans ERAET 5,400 =
102,484 2,585
Less: Loss allowance W EERE (36,035) (1,354)

66,449 1,231

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 8% to
24% (2019: 10% to 24%) per annum and repayable on maturity
date under the terms in contractual agreements or on demand in
writing by the Group. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding loans and interest receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management.

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TER TAL TAL TR

8,461 6,902 64 6,966
91,208 88,778 1,755 90,533
5,400 26,800 258 27,068

105,069 122,480 2,077 124,557
(37,389) - - -

67,680 122,480 2,077 124,557

JEWMBFIZFFEN F8%E24%(=F
—NE 10%E24%) T8 - WAAEE
REHNHRIEHE TN A SRIREME
AEE o ANEESREE R EBERER
EF B HESEREY - UEERSEER
K o WAIBEEREIEETHES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

16 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

16 BWERKFE (&)

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRER DT
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due dates: REOTIRBES DI EHBERE
2020 2019

ZEC-ZF —E-NE

Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ERHD FEHD Foh EFES MEFD @5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEn TEn FHL TAT THx
Current (not past due) BNE (k) 102,480 1,213 103,693
Less than 1 month past due ~ BEIDH—1E A 20,000 504 20,504
1 o 3 months past due BH-==@A - 360 360
Over 3 months past due BERE=A 8,556 - - -
66,449 122,480 2,077 124,557

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference
to historical information about counterparty default rates. The
existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
29(a).

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 RE&REAELZEEY - IRHIRT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FREREMRESRELER
INFORMATION
(@ Cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits @ ReMRFEVRZBEHRITER
comprise cash at the bank and on hand: BIERITLFHERES -
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Deposits with banks RITER 5,287 14,869
Cash at bank and on hand IRTT R FHEIRE 65,485 53,809
70,772 68,678
Restricted bank deposits (note) SR EIRI TR (M) (5,287) (14,869)
Cash and cash equivalents in the AR Z RS R
consolidated statement of financial REFEY
position 53,809
Note: The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks Mizk : ZPRBIRITFRIERRITHED
as security for due performance under several environmental Re  ERZARBTAHETRER
service contracts. The restricted bank deposits of approximately BEHRER - B RAMEER
HK$1,244,000 (2019: HK$8,634,000) that relate to environmental BFRIMHRERBEOZ
service contacts with expiry date over one year after the end of R B8R 7713 3049 1,244,0007%8 7T
the reporting period are presented as non-current assets. (ZZ— N4 : 8,634,000/ 7C) T3

Z2IRIERBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

17 RERBSEEY  SIRHRT
EREHGREEREER (B)

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from (b) THRFFMASERETSMEENE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. E¥E)  BIERERIFREH - @
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which BRBMEANBEARERSREN
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the KRB REBHNAEELESRSN
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows ERNDEAMEETSMELRER
from financing activities. EMAE -
Liabilty
component
of convertible Lease Finance
bonds Bank loans liabilties leases Bond Total
MRRES
HAESH RITER HEAR BEHE E% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT ThT TAL Thx TAT
(note 20) (note 21) (note 22) (note 23) (note 24)
(Fz£20) (Fzxat) (Fzt22) (Ffrz+23) (Fitsto4)
At1July 2018 RZB-N\E
tA-H 48,950 - - 593 9,551 59,094
Changes from financing BEBEHESE
cash flows:
Redemption of convertble BRI 1% &%
bonds (50,000) - - - - (50,000)
Capital element of lease ~ EFAERAEHER
rentals paid B - - - (542) - (542)
Interest element of lease ~ ERFEREMFIE
rentals paid B - - - (19 - (19
Interest paid BRFIE - - - - (700) (700)
(50,000) - - (561) (700) (51,261)
Other changes: A2
Finance charges on BAMEARETZ
obligations under finance  EEEF
leases - - - 19 - 19
Effective interest on MBRESFZ
convertible bonds ERFIS
(note 20) (Bi3E20) 1,050 - - - - 1,050
Effective interest onbond &35 2 EEFIE.
(note 24) (Misko4) - - - - 818 818
1,050 - - 19 818 1,887

PPS International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁé/ﬁxﬂ- i% *ﬁ% w-ﬁi (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 RE&RkRESZEEY - SRHIMBT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW ERREMBESRELEN (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(b) (continued) () (%)
Liability
component
of convertible Lease Finance
bonds Bank loans liabilities leases Bond Total
TRRES
HaESs RITER HESE BERE &% Foh
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T TR T TiEn T T

(note 20) (note 21) (note 22) (note 23) (note 24)
(MfzE20) (Mf&E21) (Mzk22) (Mf&k23) (Mfzk24)

At 30 June 2019 R=B-nFxA
=+tH
Impact on initial application & /X EME A
of HKFRS 16 (Note) BREERZ16
Fo B (M)
At1 July 2019 RZE-h%
tA-H
Changes from financing BERSHERS .
cash flows:
Capital element of lease ~ ERAEMLH
rentals paid EXED (2,066) (2,066)
Interest element of lease &M EH
rentals paid FEHH (121) (121)
Interest paid BRFIE - (1,219)
Proceeds from new bank ~ FHERITEFR 2
loans FrEaE - 24,270
Repayment of bank loans ~ BIERITE - (869)
(2,187) 19,995
Other changes: Hit#%:
Effective interestonbond (&5 2 EEFIE
(note 24) (Hiz¥24)
Interest expenses SR (5Es()
(note 5(a))
At 30 June 2020 R=B=ZF5A
=+tH
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mizk : AEBEEFERALBITEBRERRX
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at FERBBMEREERE 1657
1 July 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which WHAR-_ZT—-—NFtA—HZH
were previously classified as operating lease under HKAS 17 (see MiEer - AERBRALAIRIESR
note 2.3). BEENFEI7TH OB AKEE
%E%*ZEEE’\JEEE%(%W%I
2.3) e

yV N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj i% *ﬁ% WEI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

18 TRADE PAYABLES 18 BEZEFIA

2020 2019

—ECRF —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TET

Trade payables B S ENRIA m 14,198
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade HEREEER  BRERZEHEHZINE 5E

payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: NFRIBEER OO -

2020 2019

== A

HK$°000 HK$'000

FER TAET

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 13,918

31 - 60 days 31£60H 151

61 - 90 days 61%E90H 40

Over 90 days B0 R 89

14,198

19 ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 19 EFER - BEWiZERHEMES

PAYABLES ;g
2020 2019
—T-FF —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FiBT
Accrued salaries it 13,620
Provision for long service payments REARRTE 2R 4,385
Provision for untaken leave R EF RAPRE 2,498
Provision for claims RERE 3,654
Other accruals Hi st &R 5,109
Deposits received B Wi s 444
Other payables H e IR 2,464
32,174

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

20 TR ES

Pursuant to the subscription agreement and the supplemental
extension letter dated 15 June 2017 and 16 August 2017
respectively, the Company had conditionally agreed to issue
the zero coupon convertible bonds of principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) to Wui Wo Enterprise
Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI and is wholly-owned by
Mr. Yu Weiye, a controlling shareholder of the Company as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules at the date of the subscription agreement
(the “Subscriber”) up to 20 December 2017. The maturity date of
the Convertible Bonds was the first anniversary from the date of
issue of the Convertible Bonds. The subscription of the Convertible
Bonds was completed on 21 August 2018 with the net proceeds of
approximately HK$49,164,000 received.

The Subscriber of the Convertible Bonds had the right to convert
into a maximum of 128,205,128 conversion shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.39 per conversion share (adjusted for the share
consolidation and the rights issue completed on 27 July 2017 and
9 July 2018 respectively). If the Convertible Bonds had not been
converted, they would be redeemed by the Company respective on
20 August 2018, being the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.

The Convertible Bonds had been split to the liability and equity
components as follows:

BEEBHIA-Z—+FA+HEAN
—E—+tFN\A T NENREBRE G
FEEER K - AR R E B ISR B E R
TEBRAR(—BREBHBE RS
7 avA: VNS I A A= RN
TR R (FEERGEM EMRA) REZE
EEZEHRB)([RBADBTEASEA
50,000,000/ 7LH Z B Al IR fE 5 ([ AR
BES])  BEE-F—+F+-_A=+H
Bl o RRESFNEHA S AT BRRE
FETHERAE —FERAFTH - ARiRE
ENRBER T \FNA-t+—H=
X BT FIE FREL) £49,164,0007%8
5o

THEEFNRBAGREZERBR
PR pH03B T BREERARS
128,205,128 # % I 11 (K LA 0 & B &
HBR( DR _E—+FLtA-+LtEK
“E-NFEANBER)ELFAE) - 4
AR ES T EER - AR A RN
T N\FNA-T B A BEES 2D
HAR)ABMEREE -

AR BT I T & R 5

oo

Liability Equity

component component Total

=L R st

HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET

At 1 July 2018 R=ZE—NFLH—H 48,950 6,129 55,079
Effective interest expense ERFEMAX 1,050 - 1,050
Redemption of Convertible Bonds JEO [ ES (50,000) (6,129) (56,129)
At 30 June 2019 R-ZE—NFA=1H - - -

EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

21

The equity component was presented as convertible bonds reserve
within equity in the year ended 30 June 2018. The effective interest
rate of the liability component for the year ended 30 June 2019 was
14.24%.

As the Convertible Bonds had not been converted up to the maturity
date, it had been redeemed by the Company on 20 August 2018.

Mr. Yu Shaoheng, director of the Company, is the son of Mr. Yu
Weiye. Therefore, the Subscriber is considered as a related party to
the Group and the Convertible Bonds to the Subscriber constituted
a related party transaction.

BANK LOANS

The bank loans are repayable on demand and the maturity of bank
loans, based on the schedule payment dates set out in the loan
agreements, is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

20 mpRES (E)

21

BE_Z-\FRAA=THILFE - #x=
HOEREAN | B BMRESR R - B
E_T-NFARA=THILLFE BEH

+T=—=

DREEFIEF14.24% o

AR AR E S B = 2 H B ok - i)
KRR -_E—N\FENA-_T+HBHE
@ o

ARREFRBZTRERRERERELZLR
T oo Bt - RBARESANEE 2 BE
77 MR AT A AR E 5B A R R

RITER

IRTTERARERER  REERMEMN
HoFrEINREE - RITERZ BB
T

2020
—B=%F
HK$°000
FBT

Within 1 year —FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEFRERFA
More than 5 years REL

Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in note
29(c).

The bank loans were secured by the Group’s land and buildings

with a carrying amount of HK$52,400,000 and corporate guarantee
from the Company and a subsidiary.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 75517R)

22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HEAE

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period and at
the date of transition to HKFRS 16:

TRINFAEEHE R ERBE R IR
BEEEBMBREERF165E Ak
TAHEMB

30 June 2020 1 July 2019 (Note)
—E_ZFEXA=1A —E-1FtA—A (M)
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BIXHE BRIEHE ®EHE HEHEE
HERE NIEHAE FIERE BRER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER THL TET
Within 1 year —FR 1,917 2,188
After 1 year but within 2 years —FERERER 1,407 1,286
3,324 3,474
Less: total future interest expenses B BENERTEE (150)
Present value of lease liabilities HEGERE 3,324

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
July 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. These
liabilities have been aggregated with the brought forward balances of
HK$51,000 relating to leases previously classified as finance leases (see
note 23). Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16
are set out in note 2.3.

M AEEEREREETTEBEERERE
B BRELNEI6H - WHE-T
—NEEA—BZEkER - ARER
BEATRIEE B G ERENTROER
REMEZHENHERRE - ZFAE
LR D BERREHE(RME23) 2
THEIRM 2 ¥ 45351,0008 LA ©
BFHBEEE MBS ERFE165
FERZE-SFHBHEHNME23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁj i% ﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

23 OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 23 REHERIE
At 30 June 2019, the Group had obligation under a finance lease RZZE—NFAA=TH  FTEBEEEE
repayable as follows: BhEMEEAEEINT
Present
value of the Total
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
BIEHEE BEHEE
NERE RIEEE
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FiBT FiBT
Within 1 year —FR 51 52
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFEA - -
51 52
Less: total future interest expenses - BiER SR 85 (1)
Present value of lease obligation AEAIERE 51
24 BOND 24 &%
On 20 November 2014, the Company issued an unlisted corporate RZE—NFE+—AZ+8 ' KRAEET
bond at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which is unsecured, K4 %/510,000,000/8 TR IE LA A&
bears a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and is fully redeemable 5 ZEFAEER  RETFEMNET%
by the Company after 7 years from the issue date at its principal FHE - MB#ITHEREFETHARA
amount of HK$10,000,000. R ER4%610,000,0008 LB E D -
The movement of the unlisted corporate bond is set out as below: FLEMAREHEBEINAT -
2020 2019
gt %22 —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiBT
At beginning of the year REH] 9,551
Effective interest expense EREF SR 818
Interest paid BRFE (700)
At end of the year RER 9,669
The effective interest rate of the unlisted corporate bond is 8.52% FEMRABIEHFCERFNEAE852%
(2019: 8.52%) per annum. (ZZ—NF :852%) °

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 GR&EMBMRRERAMNAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HEMBARREKRMENAHIEL -
financial position presents:

2020 2019
gt 222 —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEREH
Provision for the year FREE (1,746) (4,061)
Balance of profits tax provision relating to i@ F Z RS B 45 &
prior years 35 (2,276)
(1,711) (6,337)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEIEMEH
Provision for the year FERREE (753) (74)
Provisional tax paid BT E 88 21
Exchange realignment i 5 S8 B 8 1
(657) (52)
(2,368) (6,389)
Represented by: Bl
Current tax recoverable AU e BN ERFR IE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEB 740
Current tax payable FET BN EATR IR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH (2,342) (7,077)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — RS (657) (52)
(2,999) (7,129)
(2,368) (6,389)
V N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

(c)

yV

A\ A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

25 ZEMBRRERABFREH(E)

(b) SRERELEHERE

The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in FANRERE PR R P RER AR
the consolidated statement of financial position and the B EHEMKE D REEIT -
movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowance Fair value
in excess of adjustment Other
the related  on intangible temporary
depreciation assets differences Total
BIEARRE BREE Hits
M ERE ATERE HRER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT TET TEL
At 1 July 2018 RZZE-N\E+A—H 303 23 - 326
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (3t A / MrEBEE
(note 6(a) (Ff5t6(a)) (30) (29) 609 556
Exchange realignment B 5 3% - - ©) ©)
At30 June 2019and 1 July 2019 RZZ-AERA=THEK
“E-NEtHA—H 273 - 600 873
Charged/(credited) to profitor loss 1B,/ (5t \) 1825
(note 6(a)) (Hiz6(@)) 128 - (61) 67
Exchange realignment B 5 3% - - 1) 1)
At 30 June 2020 RZZZTF A=1H 401 - 518 919
Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised (c) KRBERELHELE &fF

At 30 June 2020, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
HK$8,488,000 (2019: HK$1,436,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits, against which the assets can be utilised,
will be available in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity. Of the
total tax losses, approximately HK$2,000 (2019: HK$140,000)
will expire within 5 years under the current tax legislation. Other
temporary differences are not material.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

26 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, certain
subsidiaries of the Group and the eligible employees are each
required to make monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its full-time PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC
employees are required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of approximately HK$5,877,000 (2019: HK$5,549,000) for
the year ended 30 June 2020 represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

At 30 June 2020 and 2019, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under the
Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on termination
of their employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments when the termination meets the required circumstances
specified in the Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not
covered by the aforesaid MPF Scheme. At 30 June 2020, the
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon do not exceed the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met. Consequently,
provision for long service payment of HK$4,067,000 (2019:
HK$4,385,000) is resulted and included in accruals as disclosed in
note 19.

26 EREMETBRIARGTE

AEERBEEERIEDESABNEDS
RIBBBREGD ([ZGH0]) ADEEE
RIS 2 BERBHIEATEEFTEI([58
BEatdl]) - BB AHABEILZFEA
B 2 FRHEFRING S - RiIFWE R
g AEEETHBARIMAEREES
BRI I A E SR EEEIR T ArRE
ZREBBUWAZ5%METEIEH R -
HEFEFR E R & A AERE I A30,000/8 7T
A EIVEH 2 RS RE -

AEERPEZMBAR ARG EZR
BESETFRHEIORAKE - ZFFEH
TEIABERATREERE - AEERTHEIE
BRI BRER]E EBRFEKRAR L
ET B DR - mAE R B EE
AAEASETENBRARZ2REA M
R&ENREE ZRIRBNESE -

REE-Z-TFEA=ZF+HLEFE R
fREBm R BRI B X 45,877,000%
TT(ZZE—N%F : 5,549,000 7T) HA
REBZAERAFTHEM LR EN TS
FTEIMHK o

RIBE-EER-ZT-NFA=+H"
AEBETREECTERZIEF BT ZHEE
RISFEH - WABERRESFRITIERE
BREREE - AEBEBERIEFTE%Z
EHIIEE 2 1B T A AR MEB
A2 &RIIT il E s 8RE -
RZE-ZBEXA=1TH  FEEMRRE
SREIER 2 B|R R E R F B W EBE
BEFEZIEOIEEZIBRZ BIEERE -
Eit - EAE R S #1#4,067,00078
TL(ZZ— N4 : 4,385,000 7T) Wit A
MIFE10PTIR R ERTE A o
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27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27 UBRZELRHABERNARR

yV

| S

TRANSACTIONS

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the date of adoption, after which period no further options will be
offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect
to options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the board of directors and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (i) the average of
the closing prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (jii) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Persons
concerned for such period as determined by the board of directors,
being a date not later than ten business days after the offer date
by which the Eligible Persons must accept the offer or be deemed
to have declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for
acceptance after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the board of directors to the grantee which the board of directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall
not be more than ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer
(subject to the provisions for early termination in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme).
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27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27 UBEZELRHAERNARR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)
A

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance
of the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the
board of directors.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which
the share options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November 2018
at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all the share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together
with any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company in issue shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage
as may be allowed under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number
of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted to each of Eligible Persons (including
both exercised and outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme) in any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Where any further grant of
the share options to each of Eligible Persons would result in excess
of such limit shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders
at general meeting with each of such Eligible Persons and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(@) Share capital

yV

| S

A

M

(i)

Authorised and issued share capital

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

28 EXKi#E
(@) B

() ZEERERTKE

Number of
shares Amount
BB EE &8
’000 HK$'000
Tz FHT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares LB
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019, 1 July RZE—N\FELH—H8"
2019 and 30 June 2020 of —E-hEFARA=F+A-
HK$0.01 each —E-hEFEEA-BR
—E-FTFRA=T1H
HFRRE(EC.01E T 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
Ordinary shares T
At 1 July 2018 of HK$0.01 each RZE—-N\FEtH—H
HFRE{EC.01E T 270,000 2,700
Issue of share pursuant to rights issue AR (A% 27T A% (7 (B (i)
(note (ii)) 270,000 2,700
At 30 June 2019, 1 July 2019 and RZZE—-NFAA=1+H "
30 June 2020 of HK$0.01 each —E-NFEA—HK
—E-FFSA=1+H
HR%E(E0.01/E T 540,000 5,400
Rights issue (i) #ER

On 9 July 2018, the Company completed the rights issue
on the basis of one rights share for every one existing
share held, 270,000,000 rights shares were issued
at the subscription price of HK$0.18 per share (the
“Rights Issue”). Net proceeds from the Rights Issue was
approximately HK$46,724,000, after deducting related
expenses of approximately HK$1,876,000.
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

vi)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall in the ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The amount represents the difference between the
nominal amount of shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate amount of share capital of subsidiaries
acquired under common control pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 17
June 2018.

Contribution surplus

The amount represents the amounts due to shareholders
capitalised before the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Convertible bonds reserve

The convertible bonds reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity component of the
Convertible Bonds issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in note 2.17.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2.23.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to the eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note 2.18iiii).
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28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of net debt,
which include bank loans, bond and lease liabilities, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of a gearing
ratio. The ratio is expressed by as a percentage of total debts
over the total equity. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

28 BEXRKf#E(E)
(c) EXERE

REBETERNEENETEBRAR
EAREEESSELEMES B8
IR BB 7K T R AR A E (B A R IAR I
RARESRE - HE R RS R B R
R R E A M5 AR RE & 7 KA

AEERGERER N EELEANG
B ERSKRREM(TEHEERS
EFRKF ) R AFE AR SR A2
ZRERBRE - IREEEE
NBCHBE ARG

AEENEAGEREIERERFEA
K BREEBTER  BFLHEEAR
& ARADEHEE ABLERS - A
SEBEERERKA R AT IFEAIEE
B RR DA TR B (E L R B EEIR R
B o ZE R AEF AR S
OB OLEE - REBEEZT=TF
M _E-NENA=ZTHILEE - K
EEREERBERRTE -

RoZ-ZFR-T-AFAA=T
A B ML EMT -

2020 2019
=BSEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT

34,457 9,720

178,282 215,319

Total debts BB

Equity attributable to owners of the RATHB AELEZS
Company

Gearing ratio BfE %

19.33% 4.51%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
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e B RRME
28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(d) Distributability of reserves

At 30 June 2020, the aggregate amounts of reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$104,593,000 (2019: HK$105,236,000).

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables, and loans and interest receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks for which the Group considers to
have low credit risk.

28

29

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 2R T HEZSREREERAF

yV

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 22% (2019: 17%) and
41% (2019: 36%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
take into account the customer’s past payment history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
usually due on presentation of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The directors have considered the credit risk of trade
receivables and noted that there was no actual loss nor
significant past due experience over the past 5 years,
including periods of unfavourable economic conditions.
The directors consider the aggregate risks arising from
the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no loss allowance for credit losses were
made as at 30 June 2020 and 2019.

A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 2R THEZS4REREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB:(E)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (i) EREFRFE

The Group considers the probability of default upon REBEEEEEBREREN
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been BARREMREREHENE
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis ERREGSFERBRELM-
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether B EERREDEEZL N
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group S K%lﬂ—ré?ﬂ#ﬁiﬁﬂﬂi
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as BABANRREFRER
at the end of the reporting period with the risk of default M EXRRHEITLE - [ H‘I
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available EEAEBSHEERIIFMER
reasonable and supportive forward looking information. &R FRIRESUTIEE

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating; - ABEETER

- external credit rating (as far as available); and — HINEMEERR(NE)

- actual or expected significant adverse changes - EB MBIEBERAE
in business, financial or economic conditions that PR TE AR B A M EE KA A
are expected to cause a significant change to the 2 EHBBEFLIRE
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations. TEEMENHRERE

b o
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 2R T HEZSREREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

yV

| S

(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
ECL model is as follows:

Category
Ehl

Definition of category

EHRIzER

B (&)

(a) FERREE)
(i) MEREFFRFIE (&)
AEEBEREEBRENKE
Ry R -

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BARBEEERRECEE

Stage 1

F =B

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination.
Q%mﬁuiﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁ@%ﬁMHﬂ
AR IR E ERER E R

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.
BERERALEEERBEZEN - ELE
HIREERERNRER -

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

e W EENMT RRR S REERK
THFEM—AxZREN - AABEAR
WAERHBREERE -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables are set out in note 16.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted balance 28% and 86% (2019: 24% and 84 %)
of the Group’s loans and interest receivables respectively

as at 30 June 2020.

A
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Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

RERE+ —EARNBELENEFHA
BEMEARRR K ATREIE ERE R -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.
HRKATEEEE (AR S & EFIERE
H) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

HERKATEHIEE @ BB MR EE
BB 3H A A (T FERRE 4B 1B ) FE R B R R
STEFBWA -

BRAEEREVRER LTS
FMEAEERBRNE—FTES
ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁmo

RZEBE-ZEFXA=1+H @\
RAEBERIARBEAERAZE
BoRBRAEBERER KL
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 7T517R)

20 ¢MIACSRAREER QY

B (&)

(a) EE=RR(E)
(i) EREHRFE(E)

E=ZRA - BREFRMELEZ
EFERRAMSERR(NFT
R)RIEREE - AKELEIRH
ERAHEHAEEEGREER

PR EyHELR o
Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest FEWEREF BB S8
receivables are as follows: N
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-K& E-ER EE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL T TiBr
At 1 July 2018 RZE-\F+A—H 113,145 - - 113,145
New originated MEE 56,498 - - 56,498
Repaid during the year EREE (45,086) - - (45,086)
At 30 June 2019 and 1 July 2019 RZZ-NFRA=ZTHR
“Z-NEEA-A 124,557 - - 124,557
New originated HEE 41,334 - - 41,334
Transfer v (49,869) 49,869 - -
Repaid during the year FNEER (56,913 (3,829) - (60,736)
Exchange realignment 5 R (86) - - (86)
At 30 June 2020 RZE-EF, A=1H 59,023 46,046 - 105,069
By class at 30 June 2020 R=E-E£XB=TH
RERES
- Loans receivable —ERER 58,283 44,201 - 102,484
- Interest receivables ~[EFIE 740 1,845 - 2,585
59,023 46,046 - 105,069
By class at 30 June 2019 RZB-nERA=TH
BR5IED
- Loans receivable —EYESR 122,480 - - 122,480
- Interest receivables — A& 2,077 - - 2,077
124,557 - - 124,557

yV N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁj i% ﬁ% Bﬁ-ﬁi (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 2R T HEZSREREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB:(E)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued) (i) FEREFHRFIE ()
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL HETEHREEBERE &
allowances is as follows: DT -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-E& E-RE N Ehy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FhEL FhEL FhEL
At 1 July 2018, 30 June 2019 and RZE-NELA-H"
1July 2019 ZE-NERACTAR
“E-NEtA-B - - - -
New originated MEE 961 - - 961
Transfer to lifetime ECLs not ERETRNBEEREY
credit-impaired KABBEEER (569) 569 - -

Impact on year ended ECLs of exposures SRR B 2 BEE 2 0
transferred between stages durng the ~ HFFRBHEEFEZ

year ge - 36,428 - 36,428
At 30 June 2020 R-E-FTE A=+H 392 36,997 - 37,389
By class at 30 June 2020 RZEZEFXA=1H

RERIED
- Loans receivable —[EYERS 391 35,644 - 36,085
- Interest receivables —EUFIE 1 1,353 - 1,354
392 36,997 - 37,389
No significant changes to estimation techniques or REEEA - WEh AT
assumptions were made during the reporting period. HBRBRIEHERNEE) -

yV N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬂjﬁ*ﬁ% M{I-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 2R THEZS4REREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(E)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB:(E)

(iii) Other financial assets at amortised cost (iii) LRI B LA E
E

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and R ARY R SR E
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, deposits and ERREReAEEED - %
other receivables. The Group accounts for its credit risk PREIIRITER « e R EMmRE
by appropriately providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In WORIE - REEF B KRR TE
calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers historical HEEE Té FTIRE E BB A
loss rates for each category of receivables and adjusts for HEizERR - RETEBEHEE
forward looking macroeconomic data. J!E'ﬁ Bx Hv 7«75 SEEREZHE

WREH) B EREE - A LA
B RBEEBUREL R -

At 30 June 2020 and 2019, the Group has assessed RZZEZEFRZZ—NEFERN
that the ECL rate for those receivables is immaterial A=+H8 Xx&EECZZ12E
under 12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss RIEMEEEEZERINGRIE
allowance for other financial assets at amortised costs MIEREEBEXRTEATE
was recognised. Koo Bt - 30 4 B A R
HIER 2 B fih & B & E VB Ffa
E B -
No significant changes to estimation techniques or RIEHA - WEBE AR
assumptions were made during the reporting period. HRBRIEHERNEE) -

yV N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR HRAR MR

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

20 ¢WMIACSRAREER QY
E (&)

(b)

RBESRRE

AEEETENEEERAEELY
ZHeERE  BRASAKEHKE
EAREMNESMREFROMIEE
Ko ARBZHBRAEHERER

BeHmH  NEREERTEREH
whrRmAGERERE  LWENER

TREAAEES B A BN HRE AR
ZBTEKRMA - RAKIRERR
EnE(BRBREAE N R (HF
BN BEPRRZBITHEAE
MERF) R AEE A AN Z &
FRHRSH -

2020 2019
ul- fu 12 iy 3

Total More than More than Total More than More than

contractual Within 1yearbut  2yearsbut contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but

Carrying  undiscounted 1year or less than less than Camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than

amount cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years amount cash flow on demand 2years 5 years

ANAER 154 1E0EE  2FHLE SORER 1R 1EER 2FNEE

BEE RERELR HEER 2EHR 5EHR BEE ReiskE FEER LR BELR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

TEn TEn TiEn TEn TEx T Fhr AL AL T

Trade payables BRRATE 15,49 14,198 14,198 14,198 - -
Accruals and other BT BRREE

payables B 30,804 31730 31,730 31,730 - -

Bond &5 9,798 9,669 11,692 700 700 10,292

Lease liabities HERE 1,258 - - - - -

Bank loans HIER 23,401 - - - - -

Obligation under afinance  BETEAE
lease 51 52 52 - -
56,648 57672 46,680 700 10,292

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%éﬁj%ﬁ% W%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAJ&7T5117R)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 eRiTACSREKREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E(&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIEEBE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from restricted REBE 2 FERREEREZBRHR
bank deposits, loans receivable, bank loans, bond and lease I1ER BRER - RITER - EF
liabilities. Deposits placed and borrowings issued at fixed rates LEEAE HEERFEFEZF
and variable rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate RRBELZERDNSAREEEZA
risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s HEF R LIRS R EFRER
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out REEZEREER 2 FEBRERN
below. T o
(i) Interest rate profile () FIEER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRAFMAEBERBREHR
Group’s net deposits/(borrowings) at the end of the TR (B FEE2FIE/R -
reporting period:
2020 2019
-3 —I-nE
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRI ik
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
THR T
Fixed rate deposits/(borrowings) BEER/(fE5)
Restricted bank deposits RBHHETER 0.6% - 1.6% IS 0.35%-1.60% 14,869
Loans receivable EWER 8.0% - 24.0% RN 10.0% - 24.0% 122,480
Bond &5 8.5% (9,79) 8.5% (9,669)
Obligation under a finance lease HEREAE N/A T - 2.5% (51)
Lease liabilties HEAR 5.13% 1,258 NA 7R -
63,196 127,629
Variable rate deposits/(borrowings) B85/ (R
Bank deposits and cash at bank BIFRRETRS 0.03% 65,485 0.05% 53,809
Bank loans RITER 2.36% - 2.75% (23,401) NATER -
42,084 53,809
Total net deposits FERAE 105,280 181,438

EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 2R T HEZSREREERAF

yV

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have no significant impact
to the Group’s profit or loss after tax and accumulated
losses.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit or loss after tax and
accumulated losses assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk for at the end of the
reporting period. The 50 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until the
end of the next annual reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.

(d) Currency risk

The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and Renminbi (“‘RMB”). The
management considers the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and
expenses are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

B (&)

(c) RIEm=BE(E)

(i) SBESH

RIEBE-_ZTFXA=Z+H &
TR IR A T RS0
BmATE M EH N E - B
$’§Iﬁf$ﬁ{§/mﬂi§ﬂ,§\&§
B EEATE

Ll SRERE S TE RN EER
MEEr s EERETERY

BEREE  DNEIFNEREHE
ME%%$¥$&EME%%
AEAREHTEAEEMEE
i {8 B A A FEFEE D
ZESMTE - SOEES A
EEEEY T —EFERSH
RATHABF R AJREAEEH 2
ﬁﬁo:?—hiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
HEITOHT ©

(d) E¥ER

REBEEERHLEEERABNE
TTRARE(TAREDEHE - HRK
HDHE - WA - BEMRASXARH
Xzt EEHE - MEEERA
REBWEAZEAGERAR - A%
B3R B X SR HNES SRR © PR

IEJ"QEE%W\\%ELEA IH% %J’EEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 ¢RI TEHSREBREER AT
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 75517R)

(e) EMITEDE

2020 2019
—EEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: RHENAY R @ REBE ¢
— Trade receivables — B S RIFIE 53,479 57,364
— Deposits paid for purchase of property, —BEE¥E « BELREDH
plant and equipment b - 16,310
— Deposits and other receivables — e R EM B GRIA 8,660 3,591
— Loans and interest receivables —EREREFE 67,680 124,557
— Restricted bank deposits —ZBRHERITF R 5,287 14,869
— Cash and cash equivalents —-BekReFEY 65,485 53,809
200,591 270,500
Financial liabilities cRIBE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised  IZEER AT E 2 S RIA (S ¢
cost:
— Trade payables — B S EMNRIE 14,198
— Accruals, deposits received and other ~ —JEEFER « DUiRE M HAM
payables FEI5RIE 32,174
- Bond t> 9,669
- Bank loans —RITEK -
— Lease liabilities —HEakE -
— Obligation under a finance lease — B E AN 51
56,092

EHBHERBRAR Gk 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 2R T HEZSREREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement

yV

| S

A

()

(i)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis shall be categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair
Value Measurement”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values at 30 June 2020 and 2019.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

B (&)

(0 AVEE

()

(i)

BAFPEITEZEHEE
NFEER

AEEAEEEEERRE!
RZRFEFEZEBRTAR
HE{ERARE BV HERELERE
18 A EAEIMREZ=
AR FEERETOE - D8
NFEFEZERSEATE
B EMERABABE AR
ERENEZMMETE

— B AR EERE—
WA (DR B A
ERTS LEREERR
B2 REHERE)HE
AT -

- BoHHE:FHE-R
BASIE(AIAREE—R
AR ABUE) B R
FA 2 K71 A] B 52 8 A BUR
HEZAFE TR R
B A BB R R T S U
ZEABUE o

— ESRfE: EREAT
TERE ARSI E2 A
i -

BHEZ-_ZTFR-_FT—NF
ANB=ZTHIEFE - F—HHE
FopoETEER  NER
F =R A E o

WHERFEIEZEMT A

7R 55 B 42 P 7R S SH R AN B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

30 COMMITMENTS

(@)

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2019 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as
follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 75517R)

30 &iE

WB-NFXASTE - LERE
AUBBRTIRERZ MREEE
AFRIT :

HK$’000
FAET

Contracted but not provided for BEETAERE®E
— purchase of property, plant and equipment —WBEWE  BENEE 45,781

At 30 June 2019, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases were payable as
follows:

RZZB-NFRA=TH - RETH
REEREHEE 2 BN RRREREN
AT

HK$'000

F&T

Within 1 year —FR 3,238
After 1 year but within 5 years —FBBRERFN 1,082
4,320

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office
premises and warehouse held under leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
adjusted the opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to these leases (see note 2.3). From
1 July 2019 onwards, future lease payments are recognised
as lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 2.9, and the details regarding the Group’s future lease
payments are disclosed in note 22.

NEBALEARBEE B ERS
17D EAKEHRENTHEE T
EMETHMAEMER R EREME
Ao REBEFERLETRBPEEER
JERB AP BEMEERFE165 o iR
Bz ARBERRE-_Z-NFt
A— B & e AR BB E
ENHEAE(RWHE23) - BZF
—NFtA—HR  REMMT29%
TIMEFTEER - ARBENRRERE
Pt rheRAHERE - BF
AR SEARKEENZTOFBEREER
k22 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 EABBAXRZ R4

AND BALANCES

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 7 and senior management, is as follows:

AEEIEERABFHEECNEAT
EE(NMETARE) RS RERARR
E RS

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiExT FHBT

Directors 2=

Fees e

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e EUMREWET
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT

Contributions to defined contribution TE R FCORIRET B A9k

retirement plan

1,166
1,281
505

37

2,989

Senior management SREBEAS
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e EMEREWREF
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FGRIRGT 88930

retirement plan

144

151

3,140

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material related party
transactions during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company’s
statement of financial position in note 32(a).

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR AR M T
32 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 75517R)
32 AARMBER
(a) BB ER

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB L& 28
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARMIEE -
28
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENRER
receivables H b U IR 288 735
Amounts due from subsidiaries RSB B A R FRIE 164,508 166,377
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 29 526
164,825 167,638
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals e E A 1,163 1,431
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENLaIEVNGIE e 43,889 45,930
45,052 47,361
Net current assets REBEEFE 119,773 120,277
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABEE 119,791 120,305
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bond (6 9,798 9,669
NET ASSETS EEFE 109,993 110,636
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital &N 5,400 5,400
Reserves B 104,593 105,236
TOTAL EQUITY R 109,993 110,636

V N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬁj i% ﬁ% Bﬁ-ﬁi (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7EF117R)

32 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 32 ZAATRBBER (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Movements in components of equity (b) EETo2EH
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components RAFERAR 2 ARERIHED)
of equity during the year are as follows: ZEHBEWT
Convertible
Share Share bonds Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
e ROEE TRRESRE ZitFiE @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it TEL TEL TAL TEL TEL
(note 28(b)(i)  (note 28(o)(iv)
(PizE28(o))  (FiiEE28(o)(n))
At 1 July 2018 RZE-\EtA-H 2,700 154,500 6,129 (95,492) 67,837
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the  ERERR2EEEAE
year - - - (3,925) (3,925)
Issue of share pursuant to the rights issue BRI E TR 28(a)i 2,700 45,900 - - 48,600
Transaction costs for the rights issue HRRFHKA 28(a)(i - (1876) - - (1876)
Release upon redemption of convertiole B AR 4R
bonds 20 - - (6,129 6,129 -
2,700 44,024 (6,129) 2,204 42,799
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NERA=1H 5,400 198,524 - (93,288) 110,636
At 1 July 2019 RZE-NEtA-A 5,400 198,624 - (93,288) 110,636
Loss and total comprehensive loss for ENFERZEFELE
the year - - - (643) (643)
At 30 June 2020 WZE-EEXA=1H 5,400 198,524 - (93,931) 109,993

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR M T
33 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (WA 75517R)
33 MBARZESR
TREHFAEFEXENEEEE  BEN

BENHBARZHE - RRBZHAN
Fi A B i e3R8 E A

2020 2019
—Fo%% “TNE
Proportion of Proportion of
effective ownership  effective ownership
interest interest
BERERR EREAR
Placeof Particulars of issued and 4341 &bl
Name of company operations  paid up capital Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect Principal activity
DRER HEMEE  ERORBERAEE E R B Mk TEER
Incorporated in the BVI:
REBABRESEMAL |
Silver Marker Limited HongKong  US$1 100% - Investment holding
Bl e REER
Bransfield Assets Limited HongKong  US$3 and HK$100,000,001 - 100%  Investment holding
&R 3%7L12100,000,0017 7 RERR
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
WEBEMARL :
Pollution & Protection Services Limited HongKong ~ HK$18,557,800 - 100% Provision of environmental
and cleaning services
EHRERBERAT Bl 18,557,800/ 7L RAURR BRI
Profit Management Limited HongKong ~ HK$100 - 100% Provision of money lending
services
RIEBERAR 6 1007 RAMERE
PPS Success Limited HongKong  HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of securities
ERRHERAR &R 10,0007 BEES
Union Finance Limited HongKong ~ HK$10,000 - 100% Provision of money lending
services
EMHBERAA e 10,000 7T RAMERE
Incorporated in the PRC:
AR
Shanghai PPS Sheng Mao Environmental ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 51%  Provision of environmental

Services Limited (Note (j)

PEERABRAREERARME)) PE A&E10,000,0007C

Shenzhen Environmental Cleaning Services  The PRC RMB10,600,000
Limited (Note (ii)

RYPRSRZREER A R () e AK%10,600,0007T

and cleaning services

RERRRB2RE

- 100% Provision of money lending
services

REHRERS
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e B HRRME
33 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Notes:

U

(i)

The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity joint
ventures.

The subsidiary is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Performance bonds

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

33 BT ZER ()

34

Guarantees on performance bonds
in respect of environmental service
contracts

=R

FURIRIRIS A HBAIRZ

PSE
(I) E/ZMT}%Z\EBbxtpﬁl\é;ﬁy%g%ﬂ;\izﬂﬁﬁ
RS e
(i) ZMBARTDUIIEEBECELZEAE
Bl
FREE
(a) BHRE
2020 2019
“B-BFE TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#R it
14,810

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds
issued for due performance under several environmental
service contracts. The bank facilities of approximately
HK$20,300,000 (2019: HK$14,810,000) granted to the Group
and bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued were
pledged by:

()  land and buildings of HK$47,800,000 (2019: HKS$NIl);

(i) restricted bank deposits of HK$5,287,000 (2019:
HK$14,869,000); and

(i) corporate guarantee of the Company and PPS Success
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary.

The effective period of performance bond is based on the
service period and the contract terms as specified in these
environmental service contracts. The performance bonds may
be claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group
fail to meet the standards as specified in these environmental
service contracts.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020
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BRI

() i KiEF47,800,000/8 (=
TNEF TR
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T &

iy ARABREEM B FE
HEERAFZARIER °

B #IIRE 2 B RUERIR TH AR B AR 7% HA I
FTRERBAOTHANGOIM
T o AR ERENIRIGREEERZ
FREMRGAQTHANRE - AIEP
Al R RBERIRAE



o,’

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)

34 FAREEE)

(b) Litigations - Injury compensations

During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, the Group
may from time to time be involved in litigations concerning
personal injuries by its employees or third party claimants.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have any
significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations.
All potential claims made by these employees and third party
claimants not covered by insurance have been accounted for
in the balance of “provision for claims” under accruals, deposits
received and other payables (see note 19) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value of these cash
flows. Details of the impairment loss calculation and assessment
are set out in note 13.
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35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 35 £iH{&stR HIE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Loss allowances on financial assets measured at

yV

(c)

| S

A

amortised cost

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the previous estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of transactions is assessed periodically to the effect
of all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deduction differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future profit will be available against which the unused tax
credit can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.

Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2020

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)
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36

37

38

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2020

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 30 June 2020 and which have not
been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group and will be
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2020:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Definition of a business

Amendments to HKFRS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of material

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic
since early 2020 has brought about additional uncertainties in the
Group’s operations and financial position. The Group has actively
put in place measures in mitigating its impact. The Group will closely
monitor the development and will keep its alleviating measures
under regular review.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated.
Further details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in
note 2.3.

36
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38

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5117R)
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T EHBERE

RESULTS E3

Revenue from continuing and 2R B #5488 R B AL EE &
discontinued operations 2 Wam

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),H5H

Attributable to: AR AT FEN -
Owners of the Company ~ ANAFHEA A
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A

Dividends paid AR R

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREME

Total assets mEE

Total liabilities wamE

Total equity e BEE

4

2020
—E-%F
HK$’000
TR

345,386

(35,817)

(36,719)
902

(35,817)

265,361
(85,166)

180,195
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2019 2018 2017 2016
—E-NF —E-N\F —T—+F —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FBT FHBT FBT
316,086 319,851 282,004 269,438
19,453 8,177)  (13,488)  (51,205)
18,477 (8,289)  (13,386)  (51,058)
976 112 (102) (147)
19,453 (8,177) (13,488) (51,205)
280,424 319,612 211,210 200,882
(64,094)  (169,179)  (59,785) (82,459
216,330 150,433 151,425 118,423
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